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Year 2007

Truly we envision rising high with our 
stakeholders.  

 witnessed some remarkable 
transformation for International Leasing. 
By offering shares in Initial Public Offering 
(IPO) which has been oversubscribed 
more than 32 times, the Company has 
entered well into the market. 
We are in the final stage of introducing 
some more financial products and 
services as well as expanding our 
operations in the port city of Chittagong. 
With renewed pledge to get into bigger 
destinations, we are committed to reach 
the public by serving with flexibility and 
care. 
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April  2, 2008

To:  All  Shareholders
thNotice of the 12  Annual General Meeting

thNotice is hereby given that the 12  Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of International Leasing 
and Financial Services Limited will be held on April 24, 2008, Thursday at 10.00 a.m. at National Shooting 
Federation-Bangladesh, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212 to transact the following business:

By order of the Board

Nehal Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary

Notes:

i. The record date is fixed on March 20, 2008. The Shareholders, whose name will be appeared in the 
Share Register of the company (certificated and depositary) at the close of business on the record 
date, will be eligible to attend the meeting and get dividend.

ii. A member eligible to attend and vote in the AGM may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her 
behalf. The proxy From, duly completed and stamped must be deposited at the registered office of 
the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

iii. Admission into the Meeting room will be allowed on production of the Attendance Slip attached 
with the Proxy Form. 

To receive and adopt the Directors' Report, Auditors' 
Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the year ended 31 December,  2007.

To declare dividend for the year ended 31 December, 
2007.

To elect directors of International Leasing and Financial 
Services Limited.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year 2008 and 
to fix  their remuneration.

A 2008-12-01

A 2008-12-02

A 2008-12-03

A 2008-12-04

NOTICE OF THE AGM

To approve Public/Private Issuance of Bond, Asset Backed 
Securitization and Mortgage Backed Securitization 
subject to the approval of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and other regulatory bodies.

A 2008-12-05
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OUR VISION

To serve with flexibility and care. To rise high with our stakeholders.

OUR MISSION

?Commitment towards the development of industrial and financial sectors by 
offering diverse, innovative financial products

?Continuous drive in improving our services tailored to clients' needs

?Pursue proactive approach for reaping the benefits for all stakeholders

?Attach importance to human resource management and administration and 
provide job satisfaction to all with equal opportunity for career development

?Serve for  well being of the society
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?January 15, 1996 : Promoters Agreement signed 

?January 15, 1996 : Incorporation of the company

?February 19, 1996 : Licensed by Bangladesh Bank

?March 24, 1996 : Commencement of Business

?May 19, 1996 : First Lease Agreement signed

?December 19, 1996 : First Credit Line Agreement signed

?July 7, 1997 : First Dividend declared 

?August 22, 2001 : First syndication Lease Agreement singed

?October 30, 2001 : First Term Loan Agreement singed

?March 10, 2002 : First Work Order Financing Agreement signed

?December 11, 2003 : Licensed by Bangladesh Bank as Primary Dealer

?September 19, 2004 : Capital Market Investment started

?May 29, 2005 : First Factoring Agreement signed

?December 20, 2005 : Management Agreement signed with First Capital Ltd. of Sri 
Lanka for Primary Dealership Operations

?April 13, 2006 : Agreement signed with Equity Partners Ltd. to act as Issue 
Manager for Initial Public Offering (IPO) of shares of

? International Leasing

?July 02 to July 16, 2007 : Subscription for Initial Public Offering (IPO) of shares of the
Company held for issuance of 0.5 million shares for 
Tk. 112.50 million

?September 16, 2007 : Enlisted with Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. 
and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

?October 6, 2007 : Purchased Membership of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.  
from public auction offered by DSE

HISTORY / KEY MILESTONES
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International Leasing And Financial Services Limited (ILFSL) is a multi product financial 
institution established in 1996. Initially the Company offered Lease Finance for meeting capital 
financing requirements of various industrial segment by procuring equipment, machineries and 
vehicles. Gradually the Company has diversified into various financial products and services to cater 
to the clients' varied requirements. We are the only licensee of Primary Dealership (PD) from 
Bangladesh Bank among all the Financial Institutions to buy and sell government treasury bonds and 

bills in the secondary market. Our new product range includes Stock Brokerage (through our 

subsidiary company, to be started by 2008), Real Estate Finance. We also offer various attractive 

Deposit Schemes. Over the last 12 years of operations, through proactive marketing and services, the 

Company has been able to establish itself as a leading financial institution of the country. Our client 
and market focus will continue as we march ahead with our growth momentum.

ABOUT INTERNATIONAL LEASING



?Lease Finance
?Term Finance
?Work Order Finance
?Project Finance
?Factoring
?Real Estate Finance
?Syndication
?Stock Brokerage
?Primary Dealership (of  govt. Treasury bonds/bills)
?Deposit Schemes

PRODUCT RANGE
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SHAREHOLDERS AND 
SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

SPONSOR SHAREHOLDERS

Corporate
Singer Bangladesh Limited
Shaw Wallace Bangladesh Limited
Individual
M. Matiul Islam
Mrs. Zohra Islam
Jamal Uddin Ahmad
Mrs. Rosy Ahmad
Mahbub Jamil

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS
General Public
TOTAL

No. of shares

1,035,000
460,000

60,000
80,000
79,999
82,500

2,501

500,000
2,300,000

Percentage

45.00
20.00

2.61
3.48
3.48
3.58
0.11

21.74
100.00



Mr. Mahbub Jamil is the Chairman and Managing 
Director of Singer Bangladesh Limited (presently on 
leave). Mr. Jamil received his Masters in Sociology 
and Journalism from the University of Dhaka. Prior 
to joining Singer, Mr. Jamil worked in a senior 
position with Phillips.

Mr. Jamil is the past President of the Foreign 
Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FICCI). 
He is also a member of the Executive Board, 
International Chamber of Commerce (ICC), 
Bangladesh. Mr. Jamil was the former President of 
Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industry 
(MCCI) for the year 1999.

In 1994, Mr. Jamil received Sir Jagadis Chandra Bose 
Gold Medal for Business Management and in 1995 
Bangladesh Education Management Trust Gold 
Medal for Management Excellence. He also received 
an Award for Management Excellence, The Industry-
Southeast Bank Award. On January 21, 2008 he has 
been appointed as Special Assistant to the Chief 
Adviser of the Caretaker Government in the rank of 
a cabinet minister. He is in charge of Industries, Civil 
Aviation & Tourism and Youth & Sports ministries.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MAHBUB JAMIL
Director
(On leave w.e.f. January 21, 2008)

Mr. Gavin J. Walker is the President and Chief 
Executive Officer of Singer Asia Limited. Mr. Walker 

was appointed to his present position in August 
2005. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Walker held 

office as Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer of public quoted and private companies in 
the United Kingdom and South Africa. Mr. Walker, 
served as Chief Executive Officer of Profurn Ltd., a 

multi-brand retailer of electrical appliances and 
furniture with operations in 16 African countries 

and Australia (including SINGER® brand electrical 
appliances under license). Mr. Walker serves on the 

boards of a number of Singer Asia subsidiaries.

Mr. Gavin J. Walker
Director
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Mr. Theo Renard is the Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Singer Asia Limited. Prior to 
joining the Company, Mr. Renard held a number of 
positions in Nedcor and ABN AMRO in Africa, 
Australia and Asia, most recently as an Executive 
Director with ABN AMRO in Hong Kong. Mr. Renard 
serves as Director on the Boards of several finance 
subsidiaries and affiliate companies.

Mr. Theo Renard
Director

Mr. Sajidur Rahman is Director-Marketing of Singer 
Bangladesh Ltd. He has been with Singer for the last 

33 years. He held many key positions in Singer. He 
represents Singer in the board of ILFSL.

Mr. Sajidur Rahman Khan
Director



Mr. Mizanur Rahman
Director

Mr. Mizanur Rahman is the Managing Director of 
Shaw Wallace Bangladesh Ltd. and Nominated 
Director of Shaw Wallace Bangladesh Limited in the 
Board of ILFSL. He is also Managing Director of SW 
Shipping Ltd. and Director of House of Consultants 
Ltd. and Avant Garde Ltd.

Mr. Rahman holds a BA (Hons) degree in Economics 
from University of Dhaka and is an Associate of the 
Institute of Bankers (UK). He is also Vice Chairman of 
the International Container Shipping Association 
and Bangladesh Shipping and Logistic Services 
Providers' Forum. He is Executive Trustee of the 
NBR-registered charity, A F Mujibur Rahman 
Foundation.

Mr. Rahman is son of late A F Mujibur Rahman ICS.

Mr. Faiz Ahmad is Director of Shaw Wallace 
Bangladesh Limited and SW Shipping Limited and 

nominated Director of Shaw Wallace Bangladesh 
Limited in the Board of ILFSL. 

Mr. Ahmad is one of the senior most Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh. He was member of 
Bangladesh Tea Association from 1972 to 1992 

during which period he was a Vice 
Chairman/Chairman for a number of terms. He 

attended FAO/UNCTAD meetings in various 
countries of Asia, Europe and Africa from 1982 and 

1995. He was elected Vice Chairman of FAO 
Conference in Rome in 1994.

Mr. Faiz Ahmad
Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. C. K. Hyder
Independent Director

Joined the Board of ILFSL on December 5, 2007 as 
an Independent Director.

He is the Secretary General of Metropolitan 
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Dhaka (MCCI) 

and Bangladesh Employers Federation (BEF). He 
represented on several advisory/implementation 

committees of the Government relating to trade & 
commerce and industrial relations. He is former 

member in the successive Pay Commissions and a 
member of the Wages and Productivity 

Commissions of the Government of Bangladesh. He 
headed several committees in International Labour 

Organization (ILO), Geneva. He obtained post 
graduate degrees from Calcutta and London, and 
LLB from Calcutta. He obtained several diplomas 

from Australian Graduate School of Management 
and Harvard Business School.

Jamal Uddin Ahmad
Director

A reputed practicing Chartered Accountant of the 
country, Mr. Ahmad is the Managing Partner of 
Ahmad and Ahmad, Chartered Accountants. He has 
working experience with leading business houses 
at home and abroad, like British American Tobacco 
Ltd., the Burma Eastern Limited, KPMG, Price 
Waterhouse & Co. and A.F. Ferguson  & Co. He is also 
the Chairman of Jaroms Industries Limited.

Mr. Ahmad is former Deputy Prime Minister of the 
Government of the Peoples Republic of Bangladesh, 
former President of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), a Board Member 
of the International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC), Member of Public Sector Committee of IFAC 
and former President of the South Asian Federation 
of Accountants (SAFA).

Mr. Mustafizur Rahman has been working as Managing Director of 
International Leasing since June-2006. He joined the company in 

August 2003 and worked as Senior Vice President and Head of 
Operations of the company. Mr. Rahman started his career in IDLC 

of Bangladesh Ltd. He also worked with Vanik Bangladesh Ltd. and 
Union Capital Ltd. He has over 20 years' experience in the leasing 
industry of the country. He is an MBA from IBA, Dhaka University. 

He is  member of IBA Alumni Association and Dhaka University 
Economics Department Alumni Association (DUEDAA).

Mr. Mustafizur Rahman
Managing Director
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1 Mustafizur Rahman
Managing Director 

2 Nehal Ahmed FCA
Executive Vice President-Finance and Administration
and Company Secretary

3 Md. Monirul Islam
Vice President-Operations

4 Shrabani Bhattacharjee
Assistant Vice President-Treasury

5 Shihabul Arefin Khan
Senior Manager-Internal Audit and Compliance

6 Md. Saiful Islam Akhand
Senior Manager-Accounts

7 Abul Kalam Azad
Senior Manager- Credit Administration

MANAGEMENT  TEAM

1
2

3

4

56
7



VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

The value added statement provides a detailed account of the distribution of the value created by an organization. The 
following table indicates how much value ILFSL added for the shareholders, employees, government and how much 
retained 

2007 2006
Value Added

Value added by operational activities

Income from operational activities
Cost of services rendered

Total

Value added by non-operational activities

Non-operational revenue
Non-operational expense

Total
Provision for future losses

Total value added

Distributed as follows

Shareholders as dividend
Employees as salaries and other benefits

Government as income tax
Total

Retained for reinvestment

Depreciation & amortization
Retained earnings and other reserves

Deferred tax
Total

Total distribution

Employee statistics

Number of employees at year end
Operational income per employee

Value added per employee

Amount

 1,035,308,260 
 (822,119,360)
 213,188,900 

 19,107,256 
 (6,519,261)

 12,587,995 
 (75,000,000)

 150,776,896 

 

69,000,000 
 20,236,384 

 5,000,000 
 94,236,384 

 

2,785,112 
 48,755,400 

 5,000,000 
 56,540,512 

 150,776,896 

 

40 
 25,882,707 

 3,769,422 

Percentage

     141.39 

 

8.35 
 (49.74)
 100.00 

 
45.76 
 13.42 

 3.32 
 62.50 

 

1.85 
 32.34 

 3.32 
 37.50 

 100.00 

Amount

 842,236,690 
 (701,216,903)
 141,019,787 

          -
          -   
          -   

 (30,500,000)
 110,519,787 

 

45,000,000 
 15,599,358 

 5,000,000 
 65,599,358 

 3,245,753 
 56,674,676 

 (15,000,000)
 44,920,429

 110,519,787 

 33 
 25,522,324 

 3,349,084 

Percentage

      

 127.60 

           -   
 (27.60)
 100.00 

 40.72 
 14.11 

 4.52 
 59.36 

 2.94 
 51.28 

 (13.57)
 40.64 

 100.00 

(Figures in BDT)
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

A. Business Performance

Contract
Growth (%)
Disbursement
Growth (%)

B. Financial Performance

Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses
Financial Expenses
Profit Before Tax
Provision/Deferral of Tax 
Net Profit After Tax
Portfolio
Shareholders' Equity
Dividend %

Financial Ratios

Return on Equity (After Tax)
Earning Per Share (After Tax)
Debt Equity Ratio
Fin. Expense Coverage Ratio
Net Asset Value (Per Share basis)
Dividend Payout Ratio

2007

3,257.1
8.6%

3,394.9
16.6%

1,035.3
920.1
757.7
127.7

10.0
117.7

8,164.9
690.2

30%

17.1%
59.2

5.0
1.2

312.5
58.6%

2006

3,000.2
7.5%

2,910.7
0.8%

842.2
750.5
662.4

91.7
-10.0
101.7

6,572.1
504.9

25%

20.1%
56.5

5.9
1.1

255.5
44.3

2005

2,791.2
16.6%

2,889.0
-6.2%

673.6
540.7
434.5
132.8
-12.0
144.8

5,664.5
466.4

60%

31.0%
91.7

5.7
1.3

255.4
65.4%

2004

2,393.3
53.8%

3,079.5
84.1%

480.5
339.7
278.3
140.7

18.2
122.6

4,797.9
331.0

40%

37.0%
97.0

4.9
1.5

262.1
41.2%

2003

1,556.0
44.0%

1,672.5
34.5%

411.8
292.7
251.9
119.1

41.0
78.1

3,035.4
229.3

35%

34.1%
83.5

6.6
1.5

245.1
41.9%

Taka in million

Notes:

?Profit Before Tax decreased in 2006 from previous year due to rise in financial expenses.

?Return on Equity fall in 2006 due to fall in net income and increase in equity; also it fall in 2007, due to increase in 
equity following Initial Public Officering of shares.

?Net Asset Value increased in 2007 due to increase in Equity following IPO and increased Retained Earnings.

Taka in Million



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SNAPSHOT
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Profitability
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part in any financial transaction. As a 
prudent and responsible financial institution, the Company 
attaches top priority in ensuring safety and security of the 
finances that are being made. 

Credit Risk
It arises mainly from lending and treasury businesses. This 
is the potential loss arising from the failure of the 
counterparty to perform as per contractual agreement 
with the Financial Institution. The failure may result from 
unwillingness of the counterparty or deterioration in 
his/her financial condition. Therefore, the Company's Credit 
Risk Management actions have been designed to address 
these issues.
The company has segregated the duties of the 
officers/executives involved in credit activities. Marketing, 
Credit Appraisal and Disbursement activities are 
performed by Business Development Department. After 
Execution of the loan, the client account is monitored by 
the Credit Administration Department (CAD). It is 
responsible to monitor clients' payment track records and 
ensure adequate follow-up and recovery. 
For initial credit assessment, the company has formed a 
Management Committee (MC) comprising senior 
personnel of both Operations and Finance departments. 
After initial scrutiny, if proposal is found viable, then the 
MC sends the proposal to the Board Executive Committee 
(EC) which formally approves credit proposals.  
Rigorous Credit Appraisal is done by the Operations 
department to assess viability of the proposal from all 
standard contexts like Marketing, Economic, Technical, 
Management and Financial. A set of standard operating 
practices is done to ensure exercise of Due Diligence 
during the evaluation process.
For assessing the credit risks, the following measures are 
followed:

?Multilayer approval process

?Strict adherence to Bangladesh Bank guideline 
on credit ceiling on any single borrower/group

?Mandatory collection of credit report from Credit 
Information Bureau (CIB) 

?Evaluating payment performance of a borrower 
(both with the company and outside financial 
institution/banks) before financing

?Adequate insurance coverage for leased assets

?Intensive monitoring and follow-up actions by 
Credit Administration Department (CAD)

?Strong scrutiny of the compliance of credit 
policies by Internal Audit Department

Market Risk
Market Risk refers to the risk of fluctuation of various 
market variables like interest rate, exchange rate, 
availability of liquidity with the lenders/depositors, prices 
of securities in the stock exchanges. The year 2007 was a 
challenging year as far as market risk was concerned. The 
interest rate regime was on the upper trend due to Central 
Bank's restrictive Monetary Policy. Also availability of credit 
was limited. These resulted in quite higher cost of fund.
To combat these market risks, we have taken measures to 
diversify our financing bases. We have put-up strong 
emphasis to mobilize retail and institutional deposits. We 
have also adjusted our lending rates to cope with market 
interest rate condition. Our Treasury department 
continually monitors market interest rate regime and 
liquidity position and provides feedback to the 
Management.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk arises out of the company's inability to meet 
short term obligations to its lenders/creditors. It arises 
from the adverse mismatch of maturities between assets 
and liabilities.
Liquidity requirements are managed on day-to-day basis 
by the Treasury Department. It is responsible for ensuring 
that sufficient funds are available to meet short term 
obligations, even in crisis situations, and for maintaining 
diverse funding sources. The Treasury also oversees the 
asset liability maturity position, recommend and 
implement appropriate measures to encounter liquidity 
risk.

Operational Risk
Operational Risk is the potential loss that may arise due to 
ineffective Internal Control which may lead to mistake or 
fraud, not putting in place efficient system and procedure 
or ignoring the compliance requirement of the regulators 
or non-compliance of corporate government practices. 
To address the operational risks, an appropriate internal 
control system is in place within the Organization. A 
separate Internal Audit Department oversees the 
compliance of approved operational guidelines and 
procedures in all activities. It also oversees the compliance 
of regulatory requirements. The Internal Auditor is directly 
reportable to the Board Audit Committee and to the Chief 
Executive regarding the state of compliance of different 
operational activities and also different observations 
regarding operational issues and/or lapses/shortfall.
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Corporate governance is the system of internal controls 
and procedures by which an individual Company is 
managed. It provides a framework that defines the rights, 
roles and responsibilities of different 
groups—Management, Board and Shareholders—within 
an organization. 
The primary role of corporate governance is played by the 
Board of Directors. It is the Board that formulates the 
vision, objectives and strategic goals. The Board's 
dynamism, guidance and stewardship are all that drives 
the company towards sustainable growth. The 
Management's role is to execute those directives in a 
professional, proactive at the same time ethical manner. 
An exhaustive review of corporate governance related 
matters are provided below:

Board of Directors
The Board of ILFSL comprises of members from renowned 
corporate houses as well as individuals. It is the Board 
members' dynamism, foresightedness and wisdom that 
deliver the appropriate guidance, policies and strategies to 
run the company. 
The Board of ILFSL ensures that the company achieves 
superior financial results and stewards its leadership 
position in the industry.
The Board consists of nine members, who bring in wide 
range of expertise and perspectives. Most of the directors 
are nominated directors, except one individual director 
and one independent director. The Board members 
perform the following major tasks:

?Addressing the major policy, regulatory and strategic 
issues and providing proper guidelines 

?Monitoring the financial performance, assets quality 
and overdue position of the company periodically

?Evaluating and approving the Annual Budget of the 
company including major capital expenditure 
proposals

?Evaluating annual performance and approving the 
Annual Audit Report

?Appointment and evaluation of the performance of 
the Managing Director and senior Management 
team

?Ensuring that the senior management team has the 
requisite skills and experience to perform their 
functions effectively for maximizing shareholders' 
value

?Monitoring the adequacy, appropriateness and 
operations of Internal Control

?Monitoring significant business risks and reviewing 

how they are managed

?Delegation to Board Committees and Management 
of financial and operational authorities

?Periodic and timely reporting to the shareholders 
about the affairs and  performance of the company

?Ensuring appropriate Organizing and Staffing with 
appropriate delegation and  accountability

Independent Director
Mr. C. K. Hyder, out of Board of Nine, is the Independent 
Director. He possesses extensive business knowledge and 
experience.

Board Meetings
During the year under review, the Board of Directors held 
six meetings.
There is extensive staff participation in the decision 
making at all levels of the Company and strategic 
recommendations of material value flow to the Board for 
decision. Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer 
always attend the Board Meeting and other Senior 
Management is invited to provide additional inputs to the 
items being discussed by the Board.

Role of Chairman and Managing Director
The Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Company are 
separate persons. The role of Chairman and Managing 
Director are independent and separate. The Chairman 
oversees the policy related matters and the Managing 
Director oversees the operational matters as per directives 
of the Board.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee has been formed on February 26, 
2008 with members having relevant experience in finance 
and accounting. The audit committee  comprises of 3 
members of the Board namely, Mr. C.K. Hyder (Independent 
Director), Mr. Faiz Ahmad and Mr. Itrat Husain. The 
Company Secretary will act as secretary to the Committee. 
The committee is empowered, among other things, to 
examine any matter relating to the financial affairs of the 
Company and to review all audit and inspection programs, 
internal control systems and procedures, accounting 
policies and adherence to compliance requirements. This 
would ensure that a sound financial reporting system is in 
place, which is well managed and provide accurate, 
appropriate and timely information to the Board of 
Directors and stakeholders.
The Head of Internal Audit and Compliance will have direct 
access to the Committee. The Committee is directly 
reportable to the Board.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



Internal Control
The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for ensuring 
that a proper and effective control system is in place to run 
the operations of the Company. It is meant to ensure 
smooth functioning of the company along-with 
compliance of all internal and external rules and 
regulations.
An effective internal control also ensures that measures 
are taken to minimize operational risks and detect any 
error in various operational areas to ensure rectification in 
the first place. Although a full scale control system is not 
possible to establish, but it helps the Management to keep 
effective control over operations and minimize deviations 
as far as possible.
Key measures taken for ensuring effective internal control 
include:

?Regular Board meeting held with core strategic 
issues dealt and resolved

?Regular Board Executive Committee meeting held to 
consider all Credit Proposals and approve/decide on 
the proposals. As an extended arm of the Board, the 
EC also takes up other important operational issues

?An Internal Audit and Compliance department, 
reporting directly to the Chief Executive and Board 
Audit Committee about the state of compliance 
with the standard operating procedures of different 
operational departments

?A comprehensive annual budgetary system, directly 
approved by the Board to keep track of progressive 
performances of various operational parameters 
throughout the year

?Monthly Business Report generated by making 
Variance Analysis of the actual performance in 
various operational areas with the proportionate 
budgetary targets

?Review and analysis of fund position on daily basis

?Well developed and defined Employees' Service 
Rules, containing rules and regulations relating to 
personnel issues

?Operations Manual for guiding Credit and 
Investment management

?Regular meeting of the Management with all 
department heads to address operational issues and 
devise appropriate action plans 

Management Committee
The Management Committee comprises of members of 
senior management from both operations and finance 
departments. The committee primarily scrutinizes initial 

credit proposals before placing them to the EC of the 
Board for final approval/decision. It also monitors the fund 
position of the company to ensure matching between 
assets and liabilities and make funding available for 
investments. 

Financial Report and Transparency
Financial statements have been prepared with Bangladesh 
Accounting Standards as laid down by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh. 
Financial Reports are circulated as appropriate within and 
outside the organization. The Management Repot are sent 
quarterly to the Board of Directors containing Financial 
and Management Accounting reports. The Half Yearly and 
Annual Reports are sent to all shareholders with 
comprehensive details beyond statutory requirements. The 
Board of Directors accepts the responsibility for 
preparation of financial reports, maintaining adequate 
records for safeguarding the assets of the Company, 
preventing and detecting fraud or irregularities, selecting 
suitable accounting policies, apply those policies 
consistently and making reasonable, prudent judgements 
and estimates where necessary.
The Board of Directors confirms that the applicable 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards have been adhered to, 
subject to any material departure being disclosed and 
explained in the notes to the accounts. The Board also 
confirms that the Company keeps accounting records, 
which disclose with reasonable accuracy, the financial 
position of the Company and which enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 1994, Securities and 
Exchange Rules 1987 and Financial Institutions Act 1993 
and all amendments thereto.

Shareholders' Role
ILFSL strongly believes that all stakeholders should have 
access to complete information on its activities, 
performance and product initiatives. The shareholders play 
an important role in assisting the Board to implement 
proper Corporate Governance.
The Company welcomes active participation of the 
shareholders at Annual General Meeting and solicits their 
views at all times, promoting healthy dialogue. Whenever 
possible, the Company has also implemented 
shareholders' suggestions. Through the half yearly and 
annual reports of financial statements, meetings and other 
forms of communications, the Board and the Management 
continuously interacts with the valued shareholders of the 
Company.  
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

thI welcome you all to the 12  Annual General Meeting of 
International Leasing & Financial Services Ltd. At the close 
of business of the year 2007 your Directors are pleased to 

thpresent the 12  Annual Report on the business 
performance of the Company accompanied by economic 
overview, market status and other matters in terms of 
Companies Act 1994, Corporate Governance guidelines 
issued by Securities and Exchange Commission and 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2007. 

GLOBAL ECONOMY

?The global economy witnessed the fallen influence 
of US dollar as premier world currency. This 
prompted the shifting of reserves and assets away 
from US dollar to gold and other currencies. 

?The crisis originated in US in sub-prime mortgage 
market led to a recessionary pressure in US. This 

caused a shock in the world economy and coupled 
with world energy crisis led to slower growth 
globally. Global growth slowed in 2007 to 3.6 
percent from 3.9 percent in 2006. 

?The global fuel price showed unprecedented hike 
causing a worldwide price spiral. Global prices of 
essential commodities like edible oil, sugar, grains 
are also on the rise.

?The growth of China and India continued to soar, 
causing world demand for fuel, iron and other 
metals to rise. On the other hand, growth of 
financial powers of the Middle East shows an 
alternative growth center in Asia and a source of 
global investment fund.

STATE OF BANGLADESH ECONOMY

?The economy was held back by rise of inflation, low 
investment and a fall in agricultural production due 
to flood and cyclone.
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momentum gradually. Especially IPOs from banks/ 
financial institutions, power and energy, 
telecommunications companies have greatly 
enhanced the breadth of the market.

?Good amount of surplus liquid funds from 
institutional investors was channeled to the capital 
market, which enormously enhanced the depth of 
the market. Market Capitalization of DSE reached 
about USD 11 billion at the end of year 2007, which 
is equivalent to 15.9% of GDP. A remarkable 
phenomenon is the injection of foreign portfolio 
fund into the market which was equivalent to 6.2% 
of total turnover. Due to increased relative political 
stability, the inflow of foreign capital in this market 
was much higher than that of the previous year. Net 
foreign portfolio investment in Dhaka Stock 
Exchange was Tk. 8.90 billion, compared to Tk. 0.95 
billion in 2006.

?Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) has planned to 
launch a campaign for introducing financial 
derivatives in capital market.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE OF ILFSL DURING 2007

Your Company witnessed a great deal of transformation 
during the year in question. The Company entered into the 
capital market by offering its shares to the public through 
Initial Public Offering (IPO). It has also undertaken 
substantial diversification plan like opening a branch in 
Chittagong, opening a brokerage house and introducing 
real estate finance. The effects of our diversification plans 
are expected to materialize in the coming year, i.e. 2008. 
The Company was able to continue its growth momentum 
in every area of operation. Although the market witnessed 
a tight monetary condition and a cautious economic 
environment, the Company performed well and achieved 
all of its operational targets. This has been possible 
through effective investment and fund management. 
The market has become increasingly competitive. All the 
traditional investment products are showing diminishing 
returns due to competitiveness and market saturation. The 
initial depreciation allowance which was previously 
allowed for new capital investments in terms of lease 
finance was withdrawn from July 1, 2007. Consequently, 
deferred tax advantage will no longer be available. This has 
greatly eroded the competitive advantage of lease 
financing.  Also the scope of growth for traditional debt 
investments has also been exhausted. So your Company 
has been exerting all-out efforts to diversify its products 
and services not only to sustain in the competitive market 
but also to keep up its leadership position. 

?Price of essentials including rice, flour, edible oil, 
onion and milk increased by about 45 percent in 
2007 on average over 2006. Price of various quality 
of rices shot up by 60 percent and edible oil by 52 
percent during the same period.

?Bangladeshis working abroad sent home a record 
US $6.6 billion in 2007, which is 20 percent higher 

ththan that of 2006. Bangladesh emerged as 5  
largest remittance-recipient country in the world.

?Knitwear emerged as the top export item from 
Bangladesh for the first time during the second half 
of the year, overtaking woven products. As more 
than 90 percent of required raw materials are 
supplied by backward linkage industries within the 
country, this sector shows most competitive 
advantage.

FINANCIAL SECTOR SCENARIO

?Due to contractionary monetary policy, the 
financial market witnessed tight credit flow and 
higher interest regime.

?Government amended the Bank Companies Act 
1991 and raised minimum paid up capital 
requirement from Tk. 1 billion to Tk. 2 billion for 
banks.

?During the first ten months of the year credit 
growth decreased by 8.01 percentage points 
compared to same period of the previous year, 
despite having surplus liquidity of Tk. 140 billion in 
the banks. This was mainly due to decrease in 
disbursement of big loans during the year.

?Weighted average spread between lending and 
borrowing rates in banking sectors stood at 6.16% 
as at end of September-07, as against 5.93 percent 
at end of June-07, showing increased profitability 
in Banking sector.

CAPITAL MARKET SCENARIO

?The Capital Market registered a phenomenal 
growth in the year 2007. At the beginning of the 
year 2007 market capitalization was less than US $5 
billion, which reached the $10 billion mark in 
November 2007, which is a remarkable growth. 
Capital market is becoming a solid funding source 
for more and more companies. Due to increased 
regulatory reforms, the market is gaining 
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Total contract and disbursement amount during the year 
2007 were Tk. 3,257 million and Tk. 3,395 million 
respectively.

Leasing and term loan

The traditional debt products viz. lease finance and term 
finance continue to be major income generating 
investments, although growth prospects have shrunk. Total 
lease contract was Tk. 1,198 million, while disbursement 
amount was Tk. 1,164 million. The company made term 
finance contract and disbursement of Tk. 964 million and    
Tk. 1,157 million respectively. We have put up more effort 
towards maintaining quality of our assets, rather than rely 
on extending loans. Recovery and follow-up efforts have 
been intensified in view of expansion of our portfolio.

Capital market investment

During the year, the Company made an average 
investment of Tk. 75 million in the share market. From 
share market investments, the company made an income 
of Tk. 62.35 million, mostly in the form of capital gains.

Treasury operations

International Leasing is the only non-bank financial 
institution having Primary Dealership (PD) license from 
Bangladesh Bank to deal with government treasury bonds 
and bills. Under this license, the PDs act as dealer of 
government securities for potential buyers and sellers. The 
PDs also act as underwriters in auctions of government 
securities. During the year, your Company earned revenue 
of Tk. 52 million as capital gains, discount income and 
coupon income from treasury securities and underwriting 
commission. Net income in PD operations is TK. 2.95 
million.

FORMATION OF BOARD COMMITTEES

With a view to ensuring enhanced corporate governance 
in the Company, the Board of Directors has formed several 
committees of the Board. These are Audit Committee and 
Remuneration Committee. The Audit Committee will serve 
as a catalyst for overseeing internal control and 
transparency in financial reporting in the Company.  This 
also meets the requirement of Securities and Exchange 
Commission vide its notification no. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/02-08 dated 20.02.2006 to form a Board Audit 
Committee. Separate disclosure is provided in the 

Statement of Corporate Governance in this Annual Report 
regarding Audit Committee. The Remuneration Committee 
will look after senior employees’ remunerations & service 
conditions and also assess the need for revision of salary 
structure of the employees.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

As part of its commitment to ensure quality Human 
Resources Management, the Company maintains high 
standards of recruitment and ensures providing best 
possible incentives to its employees. The Company 
strongly believes that it is the People that make the real 
difference.
The Company arranges training program for its employees 
both locally and abroad. During the year, employees 
received 10 training courses locally, while senior 
employees received 3 overseas training sessions. The focus 
is to train both entry-level and mid-management 
employees. Employees received training on different 
technical modules, financial management and managerial 
skills. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information Technology has become an integral part of 
operations in the present day business context. Adoption 
of appropriate information and communication 
technologies ensure smoother operations and better 
client services. For a financial institution like ILFSL, which 
requires preserving and analyzing voluminous amount of 
data and other information, proper IT infrastructure is 
imperative. In the context of these facts, your Company has 
taken proper measures to ensure seamless logistics and 
operations. The key areas where appropriate actions taken 
are as follows:

1. Core Operations Software
2. Local Area Network
3. Internet
4. Website
5. Systems security and disaster recovery plans

ILFSL has developed its own Operations Software named 
“Ice Lease Multiplier” by combining and integrating all 
areas of operations. It will become fully functional by the 
middle of 2008, which once functional will enhance 
operational efficiency to a great extent. The office place is 
totally integrated by Local Area Network (LAN), supported 
by Network Server and Mail Server. Each workstation is 
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fully connected with network and internet to ensure 
internal and external communications. The Company's 
website contains different updated organizational and 
operational information. A complete systems data and 
information security process is implemented to ensure 
security and recovery of various operational data in case of 
disaster. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part in financial markets. Being an active 
player in this market, the Company is also exposed to 
different risks inherent here. Crucial risks include interest 
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and other business risks. A 
sound risk management system is crucial for ensuring 
sustainable operations of a financial institution. It entails 
continuous market-monitoring, addressing various risks 
involved in course of different operations and developing 
appropriate risk mitigation system.
Your Company has set up different committees to deal 
with different aspects of risks. The Management 
Committee (MC) deals with all credit risks while evaluating 
credit proposals and suggest proper measures. The Asset 
Liability Committee (ALCO) deals with all interest rate and 
liquidity risks inherent in our funding and investment 
activities. An independent Internal Audit Department deals 
with all operational risk related issues while scrutinizing all 
pre-disbursement formalities of sanctioned credits. 
A detailed description of risk-related issues is described in 
a separate section of this annual report.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year 2007 your Company embarked on 
extensive diversification plans, most of which are expected 
to materialize in the year 2008. We are scheduled to start 
operations of our Chittagong Branch from early 2008. For 
our Branch office, we have rented out an office-space at 
Ayub Trade Center, 1269/B Shaikh Mujib Road, Agrabad 
C/A, Chittagong. This will be our first move to stretch our 
reach across the country. We are also going to start Real 
Estate Finance scheme from the beginning of 2008. 
We have purchased a membership license of Dhaka Stock 
Exchange in 2007 from public auction. Our planned Stock 
Brokerage House through our newly formed subsidiary 
company is expected to start operation from the middle of 

nd2008. We have already rented out the 2  floor of Printers 
Building, 5 Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka (our existing Office 
location) for housing this operation. This will be our fully 
owned subsidiary company. This will greatly enable us to 
diversify our business in the burgeoning capital markets of 

the country. We are confident that these planned 
diversifications will greatly provide your Company a 
superior competitive edge in the financial market of the 
country.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

As a socially responsible company, International Leasing is 
committed to address environmental issues while 
assessing credit propositions. Presently, CNG driven 
vehicles are gaining importance due to their 
environmental friendliness. You will be glad to know that 
your Company has been nominated to be one of the 
recipients of funds of Dhaka Clean Fuel Project, an Asian 
Development Bank funded project to finance procurement 
of CNG driven vehicles and CNG stations. This is in 
recognition of your Company's contribution in financing to 
CNG sector. Our concern for society and people will 
continue as we move along with our growth spurt.

CREDIT RATING

Your Company was adjudged credit rating of A- (single A 
minus) for long term and ST3 for short term by Credit 
Rating Information and Services Ltd. (CRISL) based on 
financial reports of December 2006. This type of rating 
represents adequate safety for timely repayment of 
financial obligations. 

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors, in compliance with SEC notification no. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 
2006 affirm that:

i) The financial statements, prepared by the 
management of ILFSL present fairly its state of 
affairs, its results of operations, cash-flow and 
changes in equity.

ii) Proper books of accounts of the Company have 
been maintained.

iii) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied 
consistently, except for the changes disclosed in 
the financial statements in preparation of financial 
statements, and accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgement.

iv) Bangladesh Accounting Standards have been 
followed in preparing financial statements and any 
departure therefrom has been disclosed.
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v) The system of Internal Control is sound, effectively 
monitored and executed.

vi) There are no significant doubts on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern.

KEY OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL DATA

The Company's key operating and financial data alongwith 
explanations for significant deviations for the last five 
years are presented in page 21 as per SEC requirement.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

Pattern of shareholding of the Company at the end of 2007 
is shown in Annexure- 1 of this Report.

BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE

During the year 2007, 6 (six) meetings of the Board of 
Directors were held. Attendance by respective directors is 
shown in Annexure-2.

PROPOSED DIVIDENDS, RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The Company posted a pre-tax profit of Tk.127.75 million 
in 2007, up by 39% from 2006.Financial results of the 
Company for the year 2007 and recommended 
appropriations are summarized below:

Tk. 
Tk. 
 Tk. 
Tk. 
Tk. 
Tk.      
Tk.
Tk. 
Tk. 
Tk. 

Tk.        
Tk. 

      
Tk. 

    Tk.  

1,035,308,260
920,140,855
115,167,405

12,587,995
127,755,400

5,000,000
5,000,000

117,755,400           
123,261,583
241,016,983

23,600,000
(36,338,676)

  46,000,000                         
23,000,000                       

184,755,659

Operational Revenue
Operational Expenses                                                                                                                                                           
Operational Profit 
Non-operational Profit
Profit before Tax
Current Year Tax Provision
Deferred Tax Provision
Profit After Tax 
Retained Earning Brought forward
Profit Available for Appropriation
Appropriation
Statutory Reserve
Transferred from General Reserve
Dividend
Dividend-Cash (20%)
Dividend- Bonus Share (10%)
Retained Earnings Carried Forward

PLAN FOR UTILIZATION OF UNDISTRIBUTED PROFIT 
FOR THE YEAR 2007

The Company has to keep a mandatory reserve of 20% out 
of its profit as per statutory requirement of Bangladesh 
Bank. This is done to enhance the capital adequacy of the 
Company. The remaining part of the earnings are retained 
and injected into equity. This is used as an added source of 
fund for the Company to carry out its lending and 
investments. This also helps to maintain a balanced 
proportion of debt and equity. 

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Article 127 and 129 of Company's 
Articles of Association Mr. Mahbub Jamil, Mr. Sajidur 
Rahman Khan and Mr. Mizanur Rahman retire and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

AUDITORS

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co., Chartered Accountants has 
carried out the audit of the Company for the FY2007 and 
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. 

STATUS OF COMPLIANCE

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by 
Securities and Exchange Commission's Notification no. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 
2006 is enclosed in Annexure-3.
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Director      Dated: February 26, 2008



Avcbv‡`i Avwg B›Uvib¨vkbvj wjwRs GÛ wdb¨vwÝqvj mvwf©‡mm 

wjwg‡UW Gi 12Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq mv`i Avgš¿Y Rvbvw”Q| 

2007 mv‡ji e¨emv †k‡l Avcbv‡`i cwiPvjKe„›` Avb‡›`i mv‡_ 

†Kv¤úvbxi e¨emvwqK Kvh©µg msµvš— 12Zg evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b †ck 

Ki‡Q| Gi mv‡_ †Kv¤úvbx AvBb 1994, wmwKDwiwUR GÛ 

G·‡”Ä Kwgkb-Gi K‡c©v‡iU kvmb msµvš— bxwZgvjv Ges 

evsjv‡`k wnmve gvb AbymiY K‡i A_©‰bwZK wPÎ, evRvi e¨e¯’v 

Ges Ab¨vb¨ welq wb‡q Av‡jvPbv Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges AwWUK…Z evwl©K 

cÖwZ‡e`b 2007 cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q|

wek¦ A_©bxwZ

?wek¦ A_©bxwZ weMZ eQ‡i gvwK©b Wjv‡ii wek¦ gy`ªv wn‡m‡e 

GKK Avwac‡Z¨i cZb cÖZ¨¶ K‡i| djkÖ“wZ‡Z wewfbœ 

†`k Zv‡`i A_© Ges m¤ú` gvwK©b Wjv‡ii cwie‡Z© ¯^Y© I 

Ab¨vb¨ gy`ªvq cwieZ©b K‡i †bq| 

?gvwK©b hy³iv‡óª mve-cÖvBg gU©‡MR gv‡K©‡U †h †Mvj‡hv‡Mi 

m~Pbv nq Zv †m‡`‡k GKUv g›`v Ae¯’vi m„wó K‡i| wek¦ 

A_©bxwZ‡Z Zv GKUv AvNvZ wn‡m‡e KvR K‡i| Gi mv‡_ 

R¡vjvbx msK‡Ui Kvi‡Y wek¦ A_©bxwZi cÖe„w× K‡g hvq| 

GB cÖe„w× 2007 mv‡j nq 3.6 kZvsk, hv 2006 mv‡j 

wQj 3.9 kZvsk|

?mviv we‡k¦ R¡vjvbx †Z‡ji A¯^vfvweK g~j¨e„w× NUvq 

wek¦e¨vcx g~j¨e„w×i EaŸ©Pµ †`Lv hvq| we‡kl K‡i 

AZ¨vek¨Kxq cY¨g~j¨ †hgb †fvR¨ †Zj, wPwb Ges 

Lv`¨k‡m¨i g~j¨ A¯^vfvweK e„w× cvq|

?Pxb Ges fvi‡Zi A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w× Ae¨vnZ wQj, hvi d‡j 

R¡vjvbx †Zj, †jŠn I Ab¨vb¨ avZe c`v‡_©i Pvwn`v 

A¯^vfvweK e„w× cvq| Ab¨w`‡K, Avw_©K kw³ wn‡m‡e 

ga¨cÖv‡P¨i Avwef©ve Gwkqv‡Z weKí cÖe„w× †K›`ª cÖwZwôZ 

K‡i‡Q|

evsjv‡`‡ki A_©‰bwZK Ae¯’v

?evsjv‡`‡ki A_©bxwZ `ªe¨g~‡j¨i EaŸ©MwZ, wbgœMvgx 

wewb‡qvM Ges eb¨v I mvB‡K¬v‡bi Kvi‡Y coš— Lv`¨ 

Drcv`b Øviv cÖfvweZ n‡q‡Q|

cwiPvjKe„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b

?AZ¨vek¨Kxq cY¨g~j¨ †hgb Pvj, †fvR¨ †Zj, wcuqvR, 

`y‡ai `vg 2007 mv‡j c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq M‡o cÖvq 

45 kZvsk e„w× cvq| Dwj¬wLZ mg‡q wewfbœ iK‡gi 

Pv‡ji `vg cÖvq 60 fvM Ges †fvR¨ †Z‡ji `vg cÖvq 52 

fvM e„w× cvq|

?cÖevmx evsjv‡`kxiv weMZ eQ‡i cÖvq 6.6 wewjqb Wjvi 

A_© †`‡k cvVvq, hv c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq cÖvq 20 

kZvsk †ekx| evsjv‡`k we‡k¦ 5g me©vwaK A_© cÖvcK 

†`‡k cwiYZ n‡q‡Q|

?bxUe¯¿ MZeQi cÖ_gev‡ii gZ I‡fb e¯¿‡K Uc‡K cÖavb 

ißvbx cY¨ wn‡m‡e AvZ¥cÖKvk K‡i‡Q| Gi cÖvq 90 fvM 

KuvPvgvj Af¨š—ixb cðvrms‡hvMx wkí †hvMvb w`‡q 

_v‡K| hvi d‡j GB wk‡íi me©vwaK cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK 

myweav Av‡Q|

Avw_©K LvZ cwiw¯’wZ

?ms‡KvPbkxj Avw_©K bxwZi Kvi‡Y A_©evRv‡i msKzwPZ 

FY cÖevn Ges EaŸ©g~Lx my‡`i nvi †`Lv hvq|

?miKvi e¨vsK †Kv¤úvbx AvBb 1991 ms‡kvab K‡i 

e¨vsK¸‡jvi Rb¨ b~¨bZg cyuwRi cwigvY 100 †KvwU UvKv 

†_‡K 200 †KvwU UvKvq DbœxZ K‡i| 

?weMZ eQ‡ii cÖ_g 10 gv‡m FY-cÖe„w× c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii 

GKB mg‡qi Zzjbvq 8.01 kZvsk K‡q hvq, hw`I 

e¨vsK¸‡jvi Kv‡Q cÖvq 140 wewjqb UvKv DØ„Ë Zij A_© 

wQj| Gi g~j KviY wQj eo gvÎvi FY weZiY K‡g 

hvIqv|

?e¨vsK¸‡jvi fvwiZ FY †`Iqv Ges †bIqv my‡`i nv‡ii 

we¯—vi (spread) MZ eQ‡ii Ry‡b 5.93 kZvsk †_‡K 

e„w× †c‡q †m‡Þ¤^‡ii †k‡l 6.16 kZvs‡k DbœxZ nq, hv 

e¨vsK¸‡jvi EaŸ©g~Lx Avq wb‡`©k K‡i|

cyuwRevRvi cwiw¯’wZ

?weMZ 2007 mv‡j cyuwRevRv‡i Af~Zc~e© cÖe„w× mvwaZ 

nq| eQ‡ii ïi“‡Z evRvi g~jab wQj 5 wewjqb gvwK©b 

Wjvi, hv b‡f¤^i-07 G G‡m 10 wewjqb gvwK©b Wjv‡i 
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`uvovq| GUv Aek¨B GKwU AmvaviY cÖe„w×| cyuwRevRvi 

µgvš^‡q Av‡iv †ekx †Kv¤úvbxi Rb¨ cyuwRi GKwU cvKv 

Dr‡m cwiYZ n‡q‡Q| wbqš¿Yg~jK wewfbœ c`‡¶‡ci 

Kvi‡Y GB evRvi µgvš^‡q MwZcÖvß n‡”Q| we‡kl K‡i 

e¨vsK/Avw_©K cÖwZôvb, we`y¨r I R¡vjvbx Ges 

†Uwj‡hvMv‡hvM Lv‡Zi †Kv¤úvbxi AvBwcI-‡Z Avmvi 

Kvi‡Y GB evRv‡ii e¨wß A‡bK †e‡o‡Q|

?wewfbœ cÖwZôv‡bi DØ„©Ë Zij A_© evRv‡i wewb‡qvM Kivi 

d‡j evRv‡ii MfxiZv e„w×‡Z mnvqK n‡q‡Q| 2007 

mv‡ji †k‡l G‡m evRvi g~jab 11 wgwjqb gvwK©b Wjv‡i 

`uvovq, hv wKbv †gvU wRwWwc-i 15.9%| GKwU ¸i“Z¡c~Y© 

e¨vcvi n‡jv we‡`kx †cvU©‡dvwjI wewb‡qv‡Mi Av‡iv †ekx 

nv‡i evsjv‡`kx evRv‡i cÖ‡ek hv †gvU †kqvi †jb‡`b Gi 

6.2 kZvsk wQj| Zzjbvg~jK ivR‰bwZK w¯’wZkxjZvi 

Kvi‡Y we‡`kx †cvU©‡dvwjI wewb‡qv‡Mi Aš—:cÖevn 

(inflow) c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq A‡bK †ekx wQj| 

2007 mv‡j wbU we‡`kx †cvU©‡dvwjI wewb‡qvM wQj 8.9 

wewjqb UvKv, hv 2006 mv‡j wQj gvÎ 0.95 wewjqb 

UvKv| 

?wPUvMvs ÷K G·‡PÄ (wm.Gm.B) †`‡ki cyuwRevRv‡i 

wdb¨vwÝqvj wWivB‡fwUf Pvjyi Rb¨ cÖPviYv Pvjv‡bvi 

cwiKíbv K‡i‡Q|

AvBGjGdGmGj Gi 2007 mv‡j e¨emvwqK Kvh©µg

Avcbvi †Kv¤úvbx weMZ eQ‡i cÖf~Z cwieZ©‡bi wfZi w`‡q †M‡Q| 

†Kv¤úvbxi †kqvi AvBwcI-i gva¨‡g evRv‡i †Q‡o cyuwRevRv‡i 

cÖ‡ek K‡i| GB eQi †Kv¤úvbx cÖPzi e¨emv m¤cÖmviY cwiKíbv 

MÖnY K‡i, †hgb- e›`ibMix PÆMÖv‡g kvLv PvjyKiY, †kqvi 

†eªvKv‡iR-nvDm PvjyKiY, M„n-FY PvjyKiY BZ¨vw` D‡j¬L‡hvM¨| 

G me D‡`¨vM-B mvg‡bi eQi A_©vr 2008 mv‡j ev¯—evwqZ n‡e 

Avkv KiwQ|

†Kv¤úvbx Kg©Kv‡Êi mKj †¶‡ÎB Zvi cÖe„w×i MwZ eRvq ivL‡Z 

m¶g nq| hw`I evRv‡i K‡Vvi gy`ªvbxwZ I mZK© A_©‰bwZK Ae¯’v 

eRvq wQj, Zrm‡Z¡I †Kv¤úvbx Avkvbyiƒc mvdj¨ I e¨emvwqK j¶¨ 

AR©‡b m¶g nq| GUv m¤¢e nq Kvh©Ki wewb‡qvM Ges Znwej 

e¨e¯’vcbvi gva¨‡g|

eZ©gv‡b evRvi AwaK cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK n‡q‡Q| mKj cÖ_vMZ FY-

cY¨ †_‡K Avq K‡g Avm‡Q, g~jZt evRvi cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK I 

m¤ú„³ nIqvi Rb¨| cÖv_wgK AewPwZ fvZv (initial 

depreciation allowance) †hUv c~‡e© †gwkbvix‡Z wewb‡qv‡Mi 

Rb¨ †`Iqv n‡Zv, †mUv 1jv RyjvB, 2007 †_‡K cÖZ¨vnvi Kiv 

n‡q‡Q| d‡j wejw¤^Z Ki myweav †hUv jxR dvBb¨vÝ Gi Rb¨ 

cvIqv †hZ †mUv cvIqv m¤¢e n‡ebv; d‡j jxR dvBb¨vÝ Gi †h 

cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK myweav wQj Zv Avi _vK‡Q bv| GQvovI Ab¨vb¨ 

FYRvZ wewb‡qvM-cY¨ wQj, †m¸‡jvi Av‡iv cÖe„w×i my‡hvM mxwgZ 

n‡q G‡m‡Q| †mB Kvi‡Y Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx Gi cY¨ I †mevw` 

eûgyLxKi‡Yi Rb¨ me©vZ¥K †Póv Pvjv‡”Q, †hb cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK 

evRv‡i wU‡K _vKvi mv‡_ mv‡_ Gi †bZ…¯’vbxq Ae¯’vb‡K a‡i ivL‡Z 

m¶g nq|

†gvU Pzw³ Ges weZiY Gi cwigvY weMZ eQ‡i wQj h_vµ‡g 3257 

wgwjqb UvKv I 3395 wgwjqb UvKv|

jxwRs I †gqv`x FY

wPivPwiZ FYRvZ cY¨ †hgb jxR dvBb¨vÝ I †gqv`x FY GLbI 

g~j AvqKviK wewb‡qvM Drm wn‡m‡e Av‡Q, hw`I G¸‡jvi cÖe„w×i 

my‡hvM msKzwPZ n‡q G‡m‡Q| †gvU jxR weZi‡Yi cwigvY wQj 

1164 wgwjqb UvKv I Pzw³i cwigvY 1198 wgwjqb UvKv| †gqv`x 

F‡Yi †¶‡Î Pzw³ I weZi‡Yi cwigvY wQj h_vµ‡g 964 I 1157 

wgwjqb UvKv| Avgiv FY cÖ`v‡bi w`‡K bq, eis m¤ú‡`i ¸YMZ 

gvb eRvq ivLvi w`‡K †ekx m‡Pó AvwQ| Avgv‡`i †cvU©‡dvwjI 

we¯—…Z nIqvi †cÖw¶‡Z Avgiv FY Av`vq Ges Aweivg bRi`vwii 

w`‡K †ekx g‡bv‡hvM w`‡qwQ|

cyuwRevRv‡i wewb‡qvM

Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i, †Kv¤úvbx M‡o †kqvi evRv‡i 75 wgwjqb UvKv 

wewb‡qvM K‡i| GB wewb‡qvM †_‡K †Kv¤úvbx 62.35 wgwjqb UvKv 

Avq K‡i, †hUv g~jZt wQj cyuwRi jvf|

†UªRvix Kvh©µg

B›Uvib¨vkbvj jxwRs GKgvÎ A-e¨vsK Avw_©K cÖwZôvb †h 

evsjv‡`k †_‡K cÖvBgvix wWjvikxc (wc.wW) jvB‡mÝ cÖvß n‡q‡Q 



cwiPvjKe„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b

†UªRvix eÛ I wej µq-weµq Kivi Rb¨| GB jvB‡m‡Ýi gva¨‡g 

wc.wW-iv †UªRvix wmwKDwiwUi †µZv I we‡µZv‡`i Rb¨ wWjvi 

wn‡m‡e KvR K‡i| Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx †UªRvix 

wmwKDwiwU †_‡K cyuwRi jvf, wWmKvD›U Avq I K‚cb Avq Ges 

AvÛviivBwUs Kwgkb Gi gva¨‡g 52 wgwjqb UvKv Avq K‡i| 

wc.wW Kvh©µg †_‡K bxU Avq 2.95 wgwjqb UvKv|

†evW© KwgwU MVb

†Kv¤úvbxi Kg©Kv‡Ê AwaKZi K‡c©v‡iU kvmb wbwðZ Kivi j‡¶¨ 

cwiPvjbv †evW© wKQy †evW© KwgwU MVb K‡i‡Q| G¸‡jv n‡jv- AwWU 

KwgwU Ges cvwi‡ZvwlK KwgwU| AwWU KwgwU Af¨š—ixY wbqš¿Y 

Ges wdb¨vwÝqvj wi‡cv©wUs-G Av‡iv ¯^”QZv wbwðZ Ki‡Z wbqvgK 

f~wgKv cvjb Ki‡e| GUv wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgkb-Gi 

†bvwUwd‡Kkb bs SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/02-08 ZvwiL 20-

02-2006 Gi cwicvjb wbwðZ Ki‡e| GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 

K‡c©v‡iU kvmb weeiYx As‡k AwWU KwgwU m¤úwK©Z c„_K e³e¨ 

†`qv Av‡Q| cvwi‡ZvwlK KwgwU †Kv¤úvbxi EaŸ©Zb Kg©KZ©v‡`i 

cvwi‡ZvwlK I Ab¨vb¨ welqvw` Ges Kg©KZ©v/Kg©Pvix‡`i †eZb 

KvVv‡gvi cwieZ©b Gi cÖ‡qvRbxqZv g~j¨vqb Ki‡e|

gvbe-m¤ú` e¨e¯’vcbv

¸YMZ gvbe-m¤ú` e¨e¯’vcbvi cÖwZ A½xKv‡ii avivevwnKZvq 

†Kv¤úvbx Kg©KZ©v wb‡qv‡Mi †¶‡Î D”Pgvb eRvq iv‡L Ges 

Zv‡`i‡K m‡e©v”P cÖ‡Yv`bv cÖ`v‡b m‡Pó Av‡Q| †Kv¤úvbx wek¦vm K‡i 

†Kv¤úvbxi gvbe m¤ú`-B †Kv¤úvbxi Rb¨ mwZ¨Kv‡ii ¸YMZ 

cwieZ©b Avb‡Z cv‡i|

†Kv¤úvbx Zvi Rbe‡ji Rb¨ †`‡k I we‡`‡k wewfbœ †Uªwbs Gi e¨e¯’v 

K‡i _v‡K| weMZ eQ‡i Kg©xe„›` †`‡k 10wU Ges EaŸ©Zb Kg©KZ©viv 

we‡`‡k 3wU †Uªwbs †mk‡b AskMÖnY K‡i| gyj g‡bv‡hvM †`Iqv nq 

cÖv_wgK I ga¨g ¯—‡ii Kg©xe„‡›`i cÖwZ| Zviv †Uªwbs wb‡q‡Q wewfbœ 

iK‡gi †UKwbK¨vj welq, Avw_©K e¨e¯’vcbv Ges e¨e¯’vcK-`¶Zvi 

Ici|

Z_¨ cªhyw³

eZ©gvb e¨emvwqK Kvh©µ‡g Z_¨ cÖhyw³ Acwinvh© As‡k cwiYZ 

n‡q‡Q| h_vh_ Z_¨ I †hvMv‡hvM cÖhyw³i e¨envi Kvh©µ‡g mPjZv 

Av‡b Ges DbœZ MÖvnK †mev cÖ`vb wbwðZ K‡i| 

AvBGjGdGmGj-Gi gZ Avw_©K cÖwZôvb †hLv‡b cÖf~Z cwigv‡Y 

WvUv I Ab¨vb¨ Z_¨ msi¶Y I we‡kl¬Y Ki‡Z nq, †mLv‡b GKwU 

DbœZ Z_¨-cÖhyw³ AeKvVv‡gv _vKv Acwinvh©| Gm‡ei †cÖw¶‡Z 

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx GKwU DbœZ AeKvVv‡gv I Kvh©µg wbwðZ 

Ki‡Z c`‡¶c wb‡q‡Q| †hme †¶‡Î c`‡¶c †bIqv n‡q‡Q Zv 

n‡jv:

1. g~j Kg©KvÊ cwiPvjbvi mdU&Iq¨vi

2. ¯’vbxq GjvKv †bUIqvK©

3. B›Uvi‡bU

4. I‡qemvBU

5. wm‡÷g wbivcËv Ges `y‡h©vMRwbZ Z_¨ cybi“×vi cwiKíbv

AvB.Gj.Gd.Gm.Gj Zvi wewfbœ wefv‡Mi Kvh©µg¸‡jvi mgš^‡qi 

gva¨‡g ÒAvBm jxR gvwëcvqviÓ bv‡g wbR¯^ mdU&Iq¨vi ˆZix 

K‡i‡Q| GUv 2008 Gi gvSvgvwS cy‡ivcywi fv‡e Pvjy n‡e, hv 

Avgv‡`i Kg©Kv‡Êi `¶Zv eûjvs‡k e„w× Ki‡e| Avgv‡`i Awd‡mi 

RvqMv ¯’vbxq- GjvKv-†bUIqvK© Gi gva¨‡g Ges Gi mv‡_ 

†bUIqvK© mvf©vi I †gBj mvf©vi Øviv cy‡ivcywi fv‡e mshy³| cÖwZwU 

IqvK©‡÷kb †bUIqvK© I B›Uvi‡b‡Ui gva¨‡g Af¨š—ixYfv‡e I 

evB‡ii mv‡_ †hvMv‡hv‡Mi Rb¨ mshy³| †Kv¤úvbxi I‡qemvB‡U 

†Kv¤úvbxi nvjbvMv`K…Z Z_¨vejx †`Iqv _v‡K| GKwU c~Y©v½ Z_¨ 

wm‡÷g I wbivcËv e¨e¯’v cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q hv‡Z Z_¨ wbivcËv 

Ges Z_¨ cybi“×vi myweav wbwðZ nq|

SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv

Avw_©K evRv‡i SzuwK GKwU Acwinvh© Ask| evRv‡ii mwµq 

AskMÖnYKvix wn‡m‡e GB †Kv¤úvbxI wewfbœ ai‡Yi SzuwK enb K‡i 

_v‡K| g~j SzuwKi †¶Î¸‡jv n‡jv my‡`i nvi SzuwK, FY SzuwK, Zvij¨ 

SzuwK Ges Ab¨vb¨ e¨emv SzuwK| GKwU Avw_©K cÖwZôv‡bi wbiew”Qbœ 

Kg©KvÊ eRvq ivLvi Rb¨ GKwU mwVK SzuwK e¨e¯’vcbv c×wZ 

Acwinvh©, hvi Ask n‡jv avivevwnK fv‡e evRvi ch©‡e¶Y, wewfbœ 

ai‡Yi Kg©KvÊ cwiPvjbvKv‡j mswk¬ó SzuwKmyg~n wPwýZ Kiv Ges 

Dchy³ SzuwK wbimb e¨e¯’v MÖnY|

wewfbœ ai‡Yi SzuwKi Rb¨ Dchy³ e¨e¯’v MÖnYK‡í K‡qKwU KwgwU 

38 Annual Report 07



KvR K‡i _v‡K| e¨e¯’vcbv KwgwU (Gg.wm.) wewfbœ FY-cÖ¯—v‡ei 

g‡a¨ wbwnZ SzuwKmg~n wPwýZKiY Ges Dchy³ mycvwik K‡i _v‡K| 

m¤ú`-`vq KwgwU (G.Gj.wmI) Avgv‡`i wewb‡qvM I Znwej 

e¨e¯’vcbvi †¶‡Î wbwnZ my‡`i nvi I Zvij¨ SzuwK wel‡q e¨e¯’v wb‡q 

_v‡K| GKwU ¯^Zš¿ Af¨š—ixY AwWU wefvM wewfbœ wefv‡Mi 

Kg©Kv‡Ê mswk¬ó SzuwK wb‡q wbix¶v we‡klZ: Aby‡gvw`Z F‡Yi †¶‡Î 

weZiY-c~e© cvjbxq AvbyôvwbKZv¸‡jv wbix¶v K‡i _v‡K|

wewfbœ SzuwK m¤úwK©Z e¨vcvi¸‡jvi wb‡q GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 

Avjv`v As‡k we¯—vwiZ Av‡jvPbv Kiv n‡q‡Q|

fwel¨r m¤¢vebv

2007 mv‡j Avgiv e¨vcK m¤cÖmviY cwiKíbv nv‡Z wb‡qwQ, hvi 

A‡bK¸‡jv 2008 mv‡j ev¯—evwqZ nIqvi cÖwµqvq Av‡Q| Avgv‡`i 

PÆMÖvg kvLv 2008 mv‡ji gvSvgvwS Kvh©µg ïi“ Ki‡e Avkv Kiv 

hv‡”Q| GRb¨ Avgiv AvBDe †UªW †m›Uvi, 1269/we †kL gywRe 

†ivW, AvMÖvev` ev/G, PÆMÖv‡g ¯’vb fvov wb‡qwQ| GUv †`‡ki wfZ‡i 

e¨emv m¤cÖmvi‡Y Avgv‡`i cÖ_g c`‡¶c n‡e| Avgiv GQvovI 

M„nvqb FY cÖKí 2008 mv‡ji cÖ_g †_‡K Pvjy Ki‡Z hvw”Q|

Avgiv XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ Gi m`m¨c` wK‡bwQ 2007 mv‡j 

cvewjK AKkb Gi gva¨‡g| Avgv‡`i cwiKwíZ ÷K †eªvKv‡iR 

nvDm beMwVZ mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbxi gva¨‡g 2008 mv‡ji 

gvSvgvwS Pvjy n‡Z cv‡i| GUv Avgv‡`i m¤ú~Y© gvwjKvbvaxb 

mvewmwWqvix †Kv¤úvbx n‡e| D³ †eªvKv‡iR nvDm Pvjy n‡j †`‡ki 

weKvkgvb cyuwRevRv‡i Avgv‡`i e¨emv m¤cÖmvi‡Yi my‡hvM m„wó n‡e| 

Avgiv AvZ¥wek¦vmx †h Gme cwiKwíZ m¤cÖmviY Avgv‡`i‡K 

cÖwZ‡hvwMZvg~jK A_© evRv‡i D”PZi Ae¯’v‡b wb‡q hv‡e|

cwi‡ek Bmy¨ Ges K‡c©v‡iU mvgvwRK `vqe×Zv

mvgvwRK `vwqZ¡evb †Kv¤úvbx wn‡m‡e B›Uvib¨vkbvj jxwRs wewfbœ 

FY cÖ¯—vebv we‡ePbvKv‡j cwi‡ek Bmy¨‡K ¸i“Z¡ cÖ`v‡b 

A½xKvive×| eZ©gv‡b wm.Gb.wR PvwjZ Mvoxmg~n cwi‡ekevÜeZvi 

Kvi‡Y we‡kl ¸i“Z¡ cv‡”Q| Avcbviv †R‡b Lykx n‡eb †h Avcbv‡`i 

†Kv¤úvbx Gkxq Dbœqb e¨vs‡Ki A_©vq‡b cwiPvwjZ ÒXvKv K¬xb 

dz‡qj †cÖv‡R±Ó Gi Ab¨Zg cÖvcK, hvi gva¨‡g wewfbœ wm.Gb.wR. 

evm msMÖn Ges wm.Gb.wR †÷kb ¯’vc‡b A_©vqb Kiv †h‡Z cv‡i| 

GB dvÛ cvIqv m¤¢e n‡q‡Q wm.Gb.wR †m±‡i Avcbv‡`i 

†Kv¤úvbxi Ae`v‡bi Kvi‡Y| Avgv‡`i cÖe„w×i aviv Ae¨vnZ _vKvi 

mv‡_ mv‡_ mgvR I RbM‡Yi cÖwZ Avgv‡`i A½xKvi Ae¨vnZ 

_vK‡e|

†µwWU †iwUs

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx †µwWU †iwUs Bbdi‡gkb GÛ mvwf©‡mm 

wjwg‡UW (wµmj) KZ…©K 2006 mv‡ji wnmve Gi wfwË‡Z `xN© 

†gqv‡` A- Ges ¯^í †gqv‡` ST-3 †µwWU †iwUs cÖvß n‡q‡Q| GB 

†µwWU †iwUs Avw_©K `vq cwi‡kv‡a h_vh_ wbivcËv (adequate 

safety) wb‡`©k K‡i| 

K‡c©v‡iU Ges Avw_©K wi‡cvU© KvVv‡gv

†Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKe„›`, Gm.B.wm.-i †bvwUwd‡Kkb bs- 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 

2006 Gi cwicvjbK‡í wbðqZv w`‡”Qb †h,

1. Avw_©K weeiYx mg~n, †h¸‡jv AvB.Gj.Gd.Gm.Gj Gi 

e¨e¯’vcbv ˆZix K‡i‡Qb, Gi mvwe©K Ae¯’v, Kvh©µ‡gi 

djvdj, A_©-cÖevn Ges BKz¨BwU-i cwieZ©b mg~n h_vh_ 

fv‡e cwi‡ekb K‡i‡Q|

2. †Kv¤úvbxi wnmve-wbKvk h_vh_ fv‡e msi¶Y Kiv 

n‡q‡Q|

3. h_vh_ GKvDw›Us bxwZ me mgqB AbymiY Kiv n‡q‡Q, 

Avi Gm‡ei †Kvb e¨Z¨q wnmve weeiYx cÖ¯‘ZKv‡j 

h_v¯’v‡b e‡j †`Iqv Av‡Q Ges GKvDw›Us wnmvemg~n 

hyw³m½Z fv‡e weP¶YZvi mv‡_ Kiv n‡q‡Q|

4. Avw_©K weeiYx mg~n cÖ¯‘ZKv‡j evsjv‡`k wnmve gvb 

AbymiY Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges †h †Kvb e¨wZµg h_v¯’v‡b 

cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q|

5. Af¨š—ixY wbqš¿Y c×wZ h_vh_, Kvh©Kifv‡e 

ch©‡e¶YK…Z I ev¯—evwqZ|

6. avivevwnK e¨emv wn‡m‡e †Kv¤úvbxi Pjgvb _vKvi e¨vcv‡i 

†Kvb m‡›`n †bB| 

cwiPvjbvMZ I Avw_©K e¨vcvi msµvš— g~j Z_¨vejx

Gm.B.wm-i wb‡`©kbv Abyhvqx †Kv¤úvbxi MZ 5 eQ‡ii cwiPvjbvMZ 



cwiPvjbvMZ Avq

cwiPvjbvMZ e¨q

cwiPvjbvMZ gybvdv

A-cwiPvjbvMZ Avq

Ki c~e©eZ©x Avq

PjwZ eQ‡ii Ki msµvš— e¨q

wejw¤^Z Ki cÖwfkb

Ki cieZ©x gybvdv

Aew›UZ gybvdv- AvbxZ

†gvU e›Ub‡hvM¨ gybvdv

gybvdvi e›Ub

AvBbMZ mÂq

mvaviY mÂq AvbxZ 

jf¨vsk

jf¨vsk-bM` (20%)

jf¨vsk-†evbvm †kqvi (10%)

Aew›UZ gybvdv-bxZ                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

UvKv

1,035,308,260

920,140,855

115,167,405

12,587,995

127,755,400

5,000,000

5,000,000

117,755,400

123,261,583

241,016,983

23,600,000

(36,338,676)

46,000,000

23,000,000

184,755,659

cwiPvjKe„‡›`i cÖwZ‡e`b

2007 mv‡j AewÈZ gybvdvi e¨envi

evsjv‡`k e¨vs‡Ki AvBbMZ Pvwn`v Abyhvqx †Kv¤úvbxi †gvU Av‡qi 

20% eva¨Zvg~jK mÂq wn‡m‡e ivL‡Z nq| GUv †Kv¤úvbxi cyuwRi 

m¶gZv e„w×‡Z Kv‡R jv‡M| Av‡qi evKx Ask aviYK…Z _v‡K Ges 

BKz¨BwU‡Z †hvM nq| GUv †Kv¤úvbxi wewb‡qvM Kvh©µg Pvjv‡bvi 

Rb¨ evowZ Znwej-Drm wn‡m‡e Kv‡R jv‡M| GQvovI GUv 

†Kv¤úvbxi fvimvg¨c~Y© FY-BKz¨BwU AbycvZ eRvq ivL‡Z mvnvh¨ 

K‡i|

cwiPvjKe„›`

†Kv¤úvbxi m•Nwewai 127 I 129 aviv †gvZv‡eK Rbve gvneye 

Rvwgj, Rbve mvwR`yi ingvb Lvb I Rbve wgRvbyi ingvb Aem‡i 

hv‡eb Ges †hvM¨ nIqvi Kvi‡Y cybtwb‡qv‡Mi Rb¨ cÖ¯—ve Ki‡Qb|

AwWUi

ingvb †gv¯—vdv Avjg GÛ †Kv¤úvbx, PvU©vW© GKvDb‡U›Um 2007 

A_© eQ‡ii Rb¨ †Kv¤úvbxi AwWU Kvh©¨ m¤úbœ K‡i‡Qb Ges †hvM¨ 

nIqvi Kvi‡Y cybtwb‡qv‡Mi Rb¨ cÖ¯—ve Ki‡Qb|

cwicvjb Ae¯’v

wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi †bvwUwd‡Kkb bs - 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 
2006 G Av‡ivwcZ kZ©vejxmg~n cwicvj‡bi Ae¯’v GB cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 

mshyw³-3 G †`Lv‡bv n‡jv|

K…ZÁZv

cwiPvjKe„›` mKj m¤§vwbZ MÖvnK, e¨vsKvie„›`, evsjv‡`k e¨vsK, 

miKvix G‡RÝx mg~n Ges Ab¨vb¨ e¨emv mn‡hvMx‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi 

PgrKvi Kvh©µ‡g Ae`v‡bi Rb¨ ab¨ev` Rvbv‡”Q Ges me‡k‡l 

†kqvi‡nvìvi Avcbv‡`i‡K A‡kl ab¨ev` †Kv¤úvbxi cÖwZ 

mn‡hvwMZv I Av¯’vi Rb¨| cwiPvjKe„›` †Kv¤úvbxi mKj Kg©KZ©v-

Kg©Pvix‡`i‡K Zv‡`i avivevwnK K‡Vvi cwikªg I wb‡e`b Gi Rb¨ 

K„ZÁZv Rvbv‡”Q|

cwiPvjbv cwil` Gi c‡¶

M¨vwfb †R. IqvKvi

cwiPvjK ZvwiL: 26 †deª“qvwi, 2008

I Avw_©K e¨vcvi msµvš— g~j Z_¨vejx †Kvb iK‡gi e¨wZµ‡gi 

Dchy³ e¨vL¨vmn GB cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 21 bs c„ôvq †`Iqv Av‡Q|

†kqvi‡nvwìs Gi aiY

2007 mv‡ji †k‡l †Kv¤úvbxi †kqvi‡nvwìs Gi aiY GB 

cÖwZ‡e`‡bi mshyw³-1 G †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|

†evW© mfv Ges Dcw¯’wZ

weMZ 2007 mv‡j †gvU 6 (Qq) wU †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cwil‡`i 

mfv AbywôZ nq| ¯^ ¯^ cwiPvjK‡`i Dcw¯’wZi Z_¨ mshyw³-2 G 

†`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q|

cÖ¯—vweZ jf¨vsk, djvdj Ges e›Ub

weMZ 2007 mv‡j †Kv¤úvbx †gvU 127.75 wgwjqb UvKv Ki-

c~e©eZ©x gybvdv K‡i, hv c~e©eZ©x 2006 mv‡ji Zzjbvq 39 kZvsk 

†ekx| Av‡jvP¨ 2007 mv‡ji Avw_©K djvdj Ges cÖ¯—vweZ e›U‡bi 

wnmve bx‡P †`Lv‡bv n‡jv:
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SHAREHOLDING BY COMPANY'S PARENTS/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/RELATED PARTIES

Shareholder/Related Party

Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Shaw Wallace Bangladesh Ltd.
Jaroms Industries Ltd.

Related party relationship

Shareholder
Shareholder
Client/Creditor whose Chairman 
Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad is shareholder of ILFSL 

No. of shares 
owned

1,035,000
460,000

79,999

%

45%
20%

3.48%

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING BY DIRECTORS, CEO, CS, CFO, HIA AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN

%

3.48%
0.11%

0%

0%
0%

Name

Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad
Mr. Mahbub Jamil
Mr. Mustafizur Rahman
Mr. Nehal Ahmed

Mr. Shihabul Arefin Khan

Designation

Director
Director 
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)and 
Company Secretary (CS)
Head of Internal Audit (HIA)

No. of shares 
owned

79,999
2,501

0

0
0

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING BY TOP 5 EXECUTIVES (OTHER THAN CEO, CFO, CS AND HIA)

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING TEN PERCENT OR MORE VOTING RIGHTS 

Name

Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Shaw Wallace Bangladesh Ltd.

Related party relationship

Shareholder
Shareholder

No. of shares 
owned

1,035,000
460,000

%

45%
20%

Mr. Md. Monirul Islam
Ms. Shrabani Bhattacharjee
Mr. Md. Saiful Islam Akhand
Mr. Abul Kalam Azad
Mr. Sadique Istiaque

Vice President
Asst. Vice President
Senior Manager
Senior Manager
Deputy Manager

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0
0
0
0
0

Annexure-I

ATTENDANCE TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a Alternate Director to Mr. Gavin J. Walker
b Alternate Director to Mr. Theo Renard

thc Became Independent Director on 5  December, 2007.

Name

Mr. Mahbub Jamil
Mr. Sajidur Rahman Khan
Mr. A.M. Hamim Rahmatullah
Mr. Itrat Husain
Mr. Mizanur Rahman
Mr. Faiz Ahmad
Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad
Mr. C.K. Hyder
Mr. Mustafizur Rahman

Represented By

Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Singer Bangladesh Ltd.
Shaw Wallace Bd. Ltd.
Shaw Wallace Bd. Ltd.
Jamal Uddin Ahmad and Rosy Ahmad
Independent Director
Ex-Officio Director

No. of Board 
Meetings

6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6
6

No. of 
Meetings
 attended

6
6
6
5
5
2
6
0
6

Attendance 
Percentage

100%
100%
100%

83%
83%
33%

100%
N/A

100%

a

b

c

Annexure-2



Annexure-3

Condition No.

1.1

1.2 (I)

1.2 (ii)

1.3

1.4

1.4 (a)
1.4 (b)

1.4 (c)

1.4 (d)

1.4 (e)

1.4 (f )

1.4 (g)

1.4 (h)

1.4 (I)
1.4 (j)

1.4 (k)
2.1

2.2

Title

Board's Size: Board members 
should not be less than 5 (five) and 
more than 20 (twenty)
Appointment of Independent 
Director: At least 1/10th
Appointment of Independent 
Director by elected directors
Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer should be different person
Directors' Report to 
Shareholders to include 
declaration on:
Fairness of Financial Statements
Maintenance of proper books of 
accounts
Adoption and consistent 
application of appropriate 
accounting policies and estimates
Compliance with Bangladesh 
Accounting Standards (BAS)
Soundness and efficiency of 
Internal Control System
Ability of the Company to continue 
as Going Concern
Significant deviation in operating 
results from last year
Presentation of key operating and 
financial data of at least last 3 years

Declaration of Dividend
Details of Board Meeting and 
attendance of Directors
Shareholding pattern
Appointment of CFO, Head of 
Internal Audit and Company 
Secretary and defining of their 
respective roles, responsibilities 
and duties
Attendance of CFO and Company 
Secretary at Board of Directors' 
meeting

Compliance 
Status

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Explanation for Non-compliance 
with the Condition

 

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Securities and Exchange Commission's Notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 2006:
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3.00
3.1 (I)

3.1 (ii)

3.1 (iii)

3.2 (I)

3.2 (ii)

3.3.1 (I)

3.3.1 (ii) (a)

3.3.1 (ii) (b)

3.3.1 (ii) (c)

3.3.1 (ii) (d)

3.3.2

3.4

4.00
4.00 (i)

4.00 (ii)

4.00 (iii)
4.00 (iv)

4.00 (v)

4.00 (vi)
4.00 (vii)

Audit Committee
Formation of Committee
Constitution of Committee with 
Board members including one 
Independent Director
Filling of Casual Vacancy in the 
Audit Committee
Selection of the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee
Professional Qualification and 
experience of the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee
Reporting of the activities of the 
Audit Committee to the Board
Reporting of Conflict of Interest to 
the Board of Directors
Reporting of any fraud or 
irregularity or material defect in the 
internal control system to the Board 
of Directors
Reporting of non-compliance of 
laws to the Board of Directors
Reporting of any other matter to the 
Board of Directors
Reporting to the SEC by the 
Committee
Reporting of the activities to the 
Shareholders and General
Investors
External/Statutory Auditors:
Non-engagement in appraisal or 
valuation
Non-engagement in designing of 
Financial Information System
Non-engagement in Book-Keeping
No-engagement in Broker-dealer 
service
Non-engagement in Actuarial 
Services
Non-engagement in Internal Audit
Non-engagement in any other 
services

Complied
Complied

N/A

Not Complied

Complied

Not complied

N/A

Not complied

N/A

Not complied

N/A

Not Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Committee just formed and selection 
of the Committee Chairman follows

Committee just formed and will be 
followed in due course

Will be complied in due course

Will be complied in due course 

Committee just formed and will be 
followed in due course

Annexure-3



44 Annual Report 07

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of 
INTERNATIONAL LEASING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED as of December 31, 2007 and the related profit 
and loss account, cash flow statement and statement of 
changes in shareholders' equity for the year then ended. 
The preparation of these financial statements is the 
responsibility of the company's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an independent opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh 
Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements along with notes 
there on prepared in accordance with Bangladesh 
Accounting Standards (BAS), give a true and fair view of 
the state of the company's affairs as of December 31, 2007 
and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act, 
1994, Financial Institutions Act, 1993, the Securities and 
Exchange Rules, 1987, the rules and regulations issued by 
the Bangladesh Bank and other applicable laws and 
regulations.

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF INTERNATIONAL LEASING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

We also report that:
a) we have obtained all the information and 

explanations, which to the best of our knowledge  
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as 
required by law have been kept by the company 
so far as it appeared from our examination of 
those books;

c) the company's balance sheet and profit and loss 
account together with the annexed notes there to 
dealt with by these report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

d) the financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in Bangladesh;

e) the financial statements have been drawn up in 
conformity with the rules and regulations issued 
by the Bangladesh Bank to the extent applicable 
to the company;

f ) the expenditure incurred and payments made 
were for the purpose of the company's business;

g) the information and explanations required by us 
have been received and found satisfactory; 

h) adequate provision has been made for leases and 
advances considered to be doubtful; and 

i) the company has complied with the relevant laws 
pertaining to reserves and maintenance of liquid 
assets.

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
     Chartered Accountants 

Dated : Dhaka 
February 27, 2008

AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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       2007

 
292,500,000 
 230,000,000 

 62,500,000 

 397,691,659 
 69,000,000 

 143,936,000 
                  -   

 184,755,659
 

 690,191,659 

 3,441,115,802 
 1,276,364,748 

 33,306,225 
 45,129,482 

 1,926,226,941 
 160,088,406 

 1,458,539 

 91,761,634 

 181,271 

 60,000,000 

 4,284,708,905 

       2006

 
180,000,000 
 180,000,000 

                  -  
 

 324,936,259 
 45,000,000 

 120,336,000 
 36,338,676 

 123,261,583 

 504,936,259 

 3,009,121,724 
 1,309,728,770 

 12,967,200 
                  -   

 1,537,424,914 
 149,000,840 

 704,345 

 58,459,997 

 256,798 

 55,000,000 

 3,628,479,123 

Balance Sheet 
as at December 31, 2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders' fund
Share capital

Share premium

Reserves and surplus
Proposed dividend

Statutory reserve
General reserve

Retained earnings

Shareholders' equity

Non-current liability
Long-term loans-net of current maturity

Fund from Bangladesh Bank
Fund from RPGCL

Term deposits-net of current maturity
Security deposits-net of current maturity

Deferred liability-employees' gratuity

Interest suspense account

Training fund 

Deferred tax liability

Total liability and shareholders' equity

Notes

3.1
4

5
6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13

14

15

16

17

( Figures in BDT)



The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nehal Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary
Gavin J. Walker

Director
Mustafizur Rahman

Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated : Dhaka 
February 27, 2008

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment for own use 
(at cost less accumulated depreciation)

Net investment in leases-net of current maturity
Gross investment in leases

Less: unearned lease income
Advance against leases

Direct finance-net of current maturity
Investments-net of current maturity

Provision for future losses

Current assets
Current maturity of net investment in leases

Current maturity of direct finance
Current maturity of investments

Factoring finance
Accounts receivables 

Advances, deposits & prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Current maturity of long-term loans

Current maturity of fund from Bangladesh Bank
Current maturity of term deposits

Current maturity of security deposits
Advance lease rental & other payables

REPO against Government treasury bonds and bills
Current tax provision

Bank overdrafts
Short-term loans

Payables & accrued expenses
Unpaid refund warrant

Net surplus in current assets

Net assets

Notes

18

19

20
21
22

23

19.1
21.1
22
24
25
26
27

9.3
10

12.1
13.1
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

 
4,421,861,521 

 5,436,596 

 2,407,937,632 
 3,169,488,734 

 761,551,102 
 545,088,137 

 1,461,698,141 
 1,701,016 

 (245,000,000)

 4,305,403,253 
 813,650,030 
 983,090,277 

 1,162,319,142 
            -   
 790,765,041 
 106,944,022 
 448,634,741 

 4,197,555,869 
 801,977,060 

 16,533,975 
 1,327,567,314 

 24,472,809 
 36,039,703 

 1,145,000,000 
 10,000,000 
 82,624,541 

 580,000,000 
 170,749,608 

 2,590,858 

 107,847,384 

 4,284,708,905 

 3,711,090,409 
 7,240,712 

 2,367,565,691 
 2,969,651,186 

 602,085,495 
 468,882,336 
 851,497,477 

 15,904,193 

 (170,000,000)

 2,987,400,005 
 930,468,620 
 956,731,201 
 393,364,018 

 2,500,000 
 586,848,782 

 41,707,053 
 75,780,331 

 2,900,011,291 
 754,321,092 

 1,491,800 
 1,106,349,608 

 15,015,738 
 41,811,639 

 300,000,000 
 5,000,000 
 9,120,133 

 540,000,000 
 126,901,281 

                -   

 87,388,714 

 3,628,479,123 

( Figures in BDT)

2007 2006

Balance Sheet - Continued



Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended December 31, 2007

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nehal Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary
Gavin J. Walker

Director
Mustafizur Rahman

Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated : Dhaka 
February 27, 2008

Notes

35
36
37
38
39

18
40
41
42
43

44

30
17

45

 

1,035,308,260 
 568,724,268 
 339,931,925 

 52,316,669 
 62,348,218 
 11,987,181 

 920,140,855 
 2,785,112 

 757,736,695 
 35,255,610 
 49,363,438 
 75,000,000 

 115,167,405 

 12,587,995 

 127,755,400 

 10,000,000 
 5,000,000 
 5,000,000 

 117,755,400 

 1,987,500 

 59.25 

 842,236,690 
 548,528,565 
 241,860,450 

 28,294,530 
 1,249,060 

 22,304,085 

 750,562,014 
 3,138,879 

 662,455,469 
 25,381,132 
 29,086,534 
 30,500,000 

 91,674,676 

         -   

 91,674,676 

 (10,000,000)
 5,000,000 

 (15,000,000)

 101,674,676 

 1,800,000 

 56.49 

Operational revenue
Income from leases

Income from direct finance
Income from PD & treasury operations

Income from investment in shares
Other operational income

Operational expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Financial expenses
General and administrative expenses
Expense for PD & treasury operations

Provision for future losses

Operational profit

Non-operational profit

Profit before tax

Tax provision
Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit after tax

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Earnings per share (EPS)

      (Figures in BDT )
2007                  2006
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended December 31, 2007

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nehal Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary
Gavin J. Walker

Director
Mustafizur Rahman

Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated : Dhaka 
February 27, 2008

Cash flow from operational activities
Collection from operational income
Payments for operational expenses

Payment of income tax
Net cash flow from operational activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment

Disposal of property, plant & equipment
Acquisition of leased assets

Disposal of leased assets
Recovery against leases
Advance against leases

Direct finance
Other investments

Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Share capital

Share premium
Unpaid refund warrant

Payment of dividend
Long-term loans

Fund from Bangladesh Bank
Fund from RPGCL

Term deposits
Training fund

Short-term loans
Security deposits

REPO against government treasury bonds and bills
Bank overdrafts

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net cash flow for the year
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

 880,528,958 
 (858,316,796)

 (11,192,656)
 11,019,506 

 (1,067,248)
 86,252 

 (1,918,117,428)
 1,072,652,891 

 921,911,186 
 (76,205,801)

 (636,559,740)
 (754,751,947)

 (1,392,051,834)

 50,000,000 
 62,500,000 

 2,590,858 
 (45,000,000)

 14,291,947 
 35,381,200 
 45,129,482 

 610,019,733 
 (75,527)

 40,000,000 
 20,544,637 

 845,000,000 
 73,504,408 

 1,753,886,738
 

 372,854,410 
 75,780,331 

 448,634,741 

 679,932,457 
 (677,701,378)

 (7,965,290)
 (5,734,211)

 (5,074,326)
 219,828 

 (2,385,353,009)
 1,004,300,504 

 806,380,826 
 128,772,103 

 (304,537,012)
 45,074,583 

 (710,216,503)

               -   
               -   
               -   
 (63,155,680)

 (120,702,926)
 14,459,000 

               -   
 953,588,451 

 74,496 
 40,000,000 

 (13,108,411)
 (60,000,000)
 (20,016,512)

 731,138,418 

 15,187,704 
 60,592,627 

 75,780,331 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
for the year ended December 31, 2007
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Share Capital

 180,000,000 

 -   
 50,000,000 

 -   
 -
-
- 
 -   

 50,000,000 

 230,000,000 

 157,889,200

 
 -   

 22,110,800 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -  
 

 22,110,800 

 180,000,000 

Share
 Premium

 -  
 

 -
 62,500,000 

 -   
 -   
 -
 -  
 -

 62,500,000 

 62,500,000 

 -   

 
-   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -  
 
 -   

 -   

Proposed 
Dividend 

 45,000,000 

 - 
 -

 (45,000,000)
 46,000,000
 23,000,000

 -
 -

 24,000,000

 69,000,000

 85,266,480

 -   
 (22,110,800)
 (63,155,680)

 45,000,000
 -   
 -  

 (40,266,480)

 45,000,000

Statutory 
Reserve

 120,336,000 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 - 
-  

 23,600,000 
 -   

 23,600,000 

 143,936,000 

 100,000,000 

 
-   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 20,336,000 
 - 

 20,336,000 

 120,336,000

General 
Reserve

 36,338,676

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -
- 
 -   

 (36,338,676)

 (36,338,676)

 -   

 - 

  
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 36,338,676 

 36,338,676 

 36,338,676

Retained 
Earnings

 123,261,583 

117,755,400
 -   
 -   

 (46,000,000)
 (23,000,000)
 (23,600,000)

 36,338,676 

 61,494,076
 

 184,755,659

 123,261,583 

 
101,674,676 

 -   
 -   

 (45,000,000)
 (20,336,000)
 (36,338,676)

 -   

 123,261,583

Total

 504,936,259
 

 117,755,400 
 112,500,000 
 (45,000,000)

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 185,255,400 

 690,191,659 

 466,417,263 

 
101,674,676 

 -   
 (63,155,680)

 -   
 -   
 -  
 

38,518,996 

 504,936,259 

 (Figures in BDT )

Particulars

Balance as at January  01, 2007

Changes during the year 2007
Profit after tax for the year 2007

New issue of share capital
Dividend paid -cash

Proposed dividend- cash
Proposed dividend- bonus share

Transfer to statutory reserve
General reserve transferred to retained earnings

Net changes in 2007

Balance as at December 31, 2007

Balance as at January 01, 2006

Changes during the year 2006
Profit after tax for the year 2006

New issue of bonus share
Dividend paid - cash

Proposed dividend - cash 
Transfer to statutory reserve

Transfer to general reserve

Net changes in 2006

Balance as at December 31, 2006

Nehal Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary
Gavin J. Walker

Director
Mustafizur Rahman

Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated : Dhaka 
February 27, 2008



1 Corporate information
INTERNATIONAL LEASING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED (ILFSL) is a Non-Banking Financial Institution 
having its registered office at Printers Building, 14th 
floor, 5, Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh, was 
incorporated in Bangladesh on January 15, 1996 as a 
Public Limited Company under the companies Act, 
1994. The company obtained its license from 
Bangladesh Bank on February 19, 1996 as a Non-
Banking Financial Institution under the Financial 
Institutions Act, 1993 and commenced business on 
March 24, 1996. The company also obtained licence 
from Bangladesh Bank as Primary Dealer to buy and 
sell Government Treasury Bonds and Bills on 
December 11, 2003. The company went for Initial 
Public Offering (IPO) in July 2007 and its shares were 
listed in both Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and 
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited on September 16, 
2007.

The company provides lease finance, term finance, 
work-order finance, project finance, real-estate finance, 
factoring of accounts receivables, syndication finance, 
stock brokerage, primary dealership of government 
treasury bonds and bills and term deposit schemes.

2 Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Bangladesh Accounting 
Standards (BAS) under the historical cost 
convention and in compliance with the relevant 
provisions of the Financial Institutions Act, 1993, 
The Companies Act, 1994, The Securities and 
Exchange Rules, 1987 and Guidelines from 
Bangladesh Bank.

Preparation of the financial statements in 
conformity with BAS requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the company's accounting 
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of 
judgment or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements.

2.2 Use of estimates
Preparation of the financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principals requires the use of estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period, although these estimates are based on 
management's best knowledge of current events 
and actions.

2.3 Cash flow statements
The cash flow statement is prepared using the 
direct method as stipulated in Bangladesh 
Accounting Standard (BAS) 7 – “Cash Flow 
Statements”. Cash and cash equivalents for cash 
flow statement comprises mainly of cash in hand 
and balances at banks.

2.4 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies 
are converted into taka at rate prevailing at the 
respective date. Assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are converted 
into taka at the rate of exchange prevailing at the 
date of the balance sheet. Profit or loss arising on 
conversion is credited or debited to profit and loss 
account. 

2.5 Accounting for leases
As per BAS 17 “Leases”, leases are classified as 
finance leases whenever the terms of the leases 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership, other than legal title, to the lessees. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases.

As per BAS 17, in case of finance lease, the 
aggregate lease rental receivables including 
unguaranteed residual value throughout the lease 
term are recorded as gross rental receivables 
while the excess of gross rental receivables over 
the total acquisition cost including interest during 
the period of acquiring the lease equipment 
constitutes the unearned interest income. The 
unearned interest income is amortized to revenue 
on a monthly basis over the lease term yielding a 
constant rate of return over the period.

2.6 Accounting for direct finance
Books of accounts for direct finance operation are 
maintained based on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Outstanding principal, along with the 

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2007



accrued interest (where capitalized) thereon are 
accounted for as direct finance assets of the 
Company. Interest earnings are recognized as 
operational revenue periodically.

2.7 Revenue recognition (BAS 18, “Revenue”)
BAS 18 is a general revenue recognition standard, 
which states that revenue should be measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. This is usually the amount of cash or 
cash equivalents received or receivable and 
recognized when it is probable that economic 
benefits will flow to the entity.

2.7.1   Income from lease (BAS 17, “Leases”)
Income from leases is recognized based on a 
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of 
return on the net investment in the leases.

Unrealised income is suspended where 
necessary in accordance with the requirements 
of relevant circular issued by the Financial 
Institutions Department (FID) of Bangladesh 
Bank.

Interest on advance against leases is recognized 
on an accrual basis, which is calculated on 
advances from the date of respective 
disbursement to the date of execution of lease. 
On execution of lease, advance including 
capitalized portion of accrued interest is 
transferred to gross lease receivables.

2.7.2    Income from direct finance 
Income from direct finance is recognized on a 
time proportion basis that takes into account 
the effective yield on the asset. Unrealised 
income is suspended where necessary in 
accordance with the requirements of relevant 
circular issued by the Financial Institutions 
Department (FID) of Bangladesh Bank.

2.7.3  Income from investment in shares

Dividends (BAS 18, “Revenue”)
Dividend income is recognized when the legal 
rights to receive the payments have been 
established i.e. during the period in which 
dividend is declared in the Annual General 
Meeting.

Gain/loss on sale
Gain or loss on sale of shares listed in stock 

exchanges is recognized when those are sold in 
the market.

2.7.4   Income from PD & treasury operations

Coupon income
Coupon income from Government treasury 
bonds is recognized on an accrual basis at a 
constant rate determined in respective auction, 
which is realized from Bangladesh Bank on half 
yearly basis.

Discount income
Discount income (excess of face value over 
purchase price) from government treasury 
bonds and bills are recognized periodically on 
an accrual basis.

Capital gain/loss
Gain or loss on sale of Government treasury 
bonds and bills is determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and aggregate of 
present value and accrued coupon income of 
respective bonds and bills are recognized when 
those are sold.

2.8 Interest suspense account
Lease income earned and income from direct 
finance, overdue for three months (or equivalent, 
i.e. 90 days) or more for lease/term finance up to 5 
years tenure and for six months (or equivalent, i.e. 
180 days) or more for lease/term finance of more 
than 5 years tenure is not recognized as revenue 
and credited to interest suspense account as per 
FID Circular No. 03 dated May 03, 2006. Suspended 
interests are recognized as revenue and credited 
to profit and loss account on realization basis.

2.9 Recognition of property, plant & equipment 
and depreciation (BAS 16 “Property, Plant & 
Equipment”)

Recognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is 
recognized as an asset when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of 
the asset to the enterprise can be measured 
reliably. The cost of an item of PPE is its purchase 
price (net of discounts and rebates), including 
import duties and taxes, and any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to working 
condition for its intended use. Directly 
attributable costs are the cost of site preparation, 
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delivery, installation costs, relevant professional 
fees, and the estimated cost of dismantling and 
removing the asset and restoring the site, to the 
extent that such a cost it recognized as a 
provision under BAS 37.

Measurement
Property, plant and equipment for own use are 
stated initially at cost and subsequently at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses or at a re-valued 
amount less any accumulated depreciation and 
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditures relating to any item of 
PPE are added to the carrying amount of the asset 
when it is probable that future economic benefits, 
exceeding its present standard of performance, 
will flow to the company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. All other costs are 
recognised in profit and loss account as expense. 

Depreciation
Components of an asset with differing patterns of 
benefits are depreciated separately.

Depreciation on own fixed assets is charged 
systematically over the asset's useful life. The 
depreciation method reflects the pattern of 
benefit consumption. Full year depreciation has 
been charged on additions irrespective of date 
when the related assets are put into use. On the 
other hand, no depreciation has been charged on 
the month of disposal.

The company follows the straight-line method of 
depreciation applying annual rates stated as 
follows:

ØFurniture and fixtures 15%

ØOffice equipment 20%

ØOffice decoration 15%

ØMotor vehicles 20%

Disposal or retirement
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit 
and loss account.

 2.10 Intangible assets (BAS- 38)
Costs incurred to procure software represent as 
intangible assets (note 26.2), once fully 
operational, which will be amortised on a 
systematic basis over the best estimate of its 
useful life.

2.11 Borrowing cost
All borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in 
the period in which they incurred in accordance 
with benchmark treatment of Bangladesh 
Accounting Standard-23.

2.12 Accrued expenses, provisions and other
payables
As per BAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets”, a provision is recognized 
only when a past event has created a legal or 
constructive obligation, an outflow of resources is 
probable, and the amount of the obligation can 
be estimated reliably. Amount recognized as a 
provision is the best estimate of settlement 
amount at balance sheet date. 

2.13 Investment in shares
The entire portfolio of investment in shares has 
been liquidated before end of December 31, 2007 
as such no provisions for diminution in value was 
required.

2.14 Provision for future losses
Provision has been made on outstanding 
exposures, based on aging and continuous review 
of the receivables, as per guidelines of Bangladesh 
Bank as practiced by the company. The provision 
is considered adequate as per management 
estimation to meet probable future losses.

 
2.15 Employees' benefits obligations 

Defined contribution plan
The company operates a recognised contributory 
provident fund scheme for its permanent 
employees. Provident fund is administered by a 
Board of Trustees and is funded by contributions 
partly from the employees and partly from 
company at a predetermined rate of 10% of basic 
salary. The contributions are kept and invested 
separately from the Company's asset.

Defined benefit plan-Gratuity
The company operates an unfunded gratuity 

Notes to the financial statements - continued



scheme. Provision has been made in the financial 
statements as per approved gratuities scheme. 
Employees are entitled to gratuity benefit after 
completion of minimum five years of continued 
service in the company. The gratuity is calculated 
on the last basic pay and is payable at the rate of 
one month's basic pay for every completed year 
of service as per approved gratuity plan. Since the 
liability amount under the head is not substantial, 
the actuarial valuation was not felt required.

2.16 Other employees' benefit obligation
The company has several types of loans and
advances scheme like specific purpose loan, 
provident fund loan, house building loan and loan 
for buying motor vehicle guided by the 
employees' service rules.

In addition the company operates a group life 
insurance scheme for its employees.

2.17 Tax provision 

Current tax
Provision for current tax is made on the basis of 
the profit for the year as adjusted for taxation 
purpose in accordance with the provision of 
Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and amendments 
thereto.

Deferred tax
The company accounts for deferred tax as per 
Bangladesh Accounting Standard - 12. Deferred 
tax is provided using the liability method for all 
temporary timing differences arising between the 
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
value for financial reporting purposes. Tax rate 
prevailing at the balance sheet date is used to 
determine deferred tax. The amount of deferred 
tax provided for is considered to be adequate as 
per conservative estimation of the management. 

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary 
difference arising on depreciation on property, 
plant and equipment, provision for bad debts, 
gratuity provision and tax losses carried forward, 
except where the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary difference can be controlled and it is 
probable that the temporary difference will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset/ 
liability is reviewed each balance sheet date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 

that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Income tax assessments have done up to the 
accounting year ended December 2005 resulting 
in a deferred tax asset (unabsorbed 
depreciation/claims) of Tk. 446.97 million. 
Assessments for the accounting year ended 
December 2006 (return submitted) and 2007 
(return to be submitted by July 15, 2008) are yet to 
be finalized.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash comprises cash in hand and cash at bank. 
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a 
known amount of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of change in value.

2.19 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
The company calculates Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting 
Standards-33, which is shown in the face of the 
Profit and Loss Account, and the computation is 
stated in Note- 45.

2.20 Related party disclosure (BAS- 24)
As per Bangladesh Accounting Standard parties 
are considered to be related if one of the parties 
has the ability to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party 
in making financial and operating decisions. The 
company carried out transactions in the ordinary 
course of business on an arm's length basis at 
commercial rates with related parties. Related 
party disclosure is given in Note -46.

2.21 Events after balance sheet date
All material events occurring after the balance 
sheet date are considered and where necessary, 
adjusted for or disclosed in Note-47.

Others
Figures of the previous year have been 
rearranged, wherever considered necessary for 
the purpose of comparison with current year's 
presentation without any impact on the profit and 
value of assets and liabilities as reported in the 
financial statements.

Figures in the financial statements and notes have 
been rounded off to the nearest taka.
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3 Share capital 
Authorized

3,000,000 ordinary shares of taka 100 each

3.1 Issued, subscribed & paid up 

       

 300,000,000 

 230,000,000 

        

 300,000,000 

 180,000,000 

2,300,000 Ordinary shares including 1,200,000 bonus shares of taka 100 each ( in 2006,   1,800,000 Ordinary shares 
of taka 100 each). During the year 2007 the Company issued 500,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each with a 
premium of Tk. 125 for each share. The proceeds of share premium of Tk. 125 per share (Tk. 62,500,000 for 500,000 
shares @ Tk. 125 each) has been shown under Share Premium Account (note- 4).

Composition of shareholdings

Sponsor shareholders

a) Corporate
Singer Bangladesh Limited

Shaw Wallace Bangladesh Limited
b) Individual

Mrs. Rosy Ahmad
Mrs. Zohra Islam

Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad
Mr. M Matiul Islam
Mr. Mahbub Jamil

General shareholders
a) Institutions/corporate

b) Individual
Total

No. of shares
 1,800,000 

 1,495,000 
 1,035,000 

 460,000 
 305,000 

 82,500 
 80,000 
 79,999 
 60,000 

 2,501 
 500,000 
 171,100 
 328,900 

 2,300,000 

% of holding
 78.26 

 65.00 
 45.00 
 20.00 

 13.26 
 3.58 
 3.48 
 3.48 
 2.61 
 0.11 

 21.74 
 7.44 

 14.30 
 100.00 

Amount
 180,000,000 

 149,500,000 
 103,500,000 

 46,000,000 
 30,500,000 

 8,250,000 
 8,000,000 
 7,999,900 
 6,000,000 

 250,100 
 50,000,000 

 17,110,000 
 32,890,000 

 230,000,000 

The detail history of raising of share capital of the company is given below:

Date

15-Jan-96
17-Mar-96
24-Nov-96
22-Sep-98
22-Jun-99

29-May-03
16-Jun-04
12-Jun-05
05-Jul-06

02-Sep-07
Total

Particulars

As per MOA & AOA
Allotted for cash
Allotted for cash

Bonus Share
Bonus Share
Bonus Share
Bonus Share
Bonus Share
Bonus Share

IPO shares

No. of
shares

7
10,000

589,993
90,000

138,000
107,640
327,474
315,778
221,108
500,000

2,300,000

 Amount of  
 paid-up capital 

 700 
 1,000,000 

 58,999,300 
 9,000,000 

 13,800,000 
 10,764,000 
 32,747,400 
 31,577,800 
 22,110,800 
 50,000,000 

 230,000,000 

No. of
shares

 7 
 10,007 

 600,000 
 690,000 
 828,000 
 935,640 

 1,263,114 
 1,578,892 
 1,800,000 
 2,300,000 

 Amount of  
 paid-up capital 

700
1,000,700

60,000,000
69,000,000
82,800,000
93,564,000

126,311,400
157,889,200
180,000,000
230,000,000

Addition in Cummulative

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)

3.2 Classification of shareholders by holding as required by regulation 37 of the listing Regulations of Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Ltd.

Number of shares
Number of        

shareholders
Percentage

Less than
 501 

 5,001 
 10,001 
 20,001 
 30,001 
 40,001 
 50,001 

 100,001 
More than
Total

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

 500 
 5,000 

 10,000 
 20,000 
 30,000 
 40,000 
 50,000 

 100,000 
 500,000 
 500,000 

 4,246 
 90 

 7 
 - 
 1 
 - 
 - 
 4 
 1 
 1

 4,350 

 12.42 
 5.77 
 2.49 

 -   
 1.17 

 -   
 -   

 13.15 
 20.00 
 45.00 

 100.00 

The shares were listed in Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited on September 16, 
2007 and traded at Tk. 749.25 each at Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Tk. 745.00 each at  Chittagong Stock 
Exchange Limited at the end of the year 2007.

The company as a financial institution is subject to minimum capital requirement as stipulated in FID Circular no. 2, 
dated 29.06.2003 about paid-up capital and reserve fund of financial institutions. As per the requirement, an FI is 
required to have a minimum capital of Tk. 250 million.

In order to be adequately capitalized, an FI should have its core capital equal to or above its minimum capital. Core 
capital consists of shareholders' fund and reserves & surplus including current year's unappropriated profit. For the 
purpose of capital requirement, total capital base is used which is defined as core capital plus general provision for 
future losses equivalent to 1% of unclassified leases/loans. 

The capital requirement position of the company is shown below:

Core capital
Required minimum capital

Excess of core capital over required minimum capital

Core capital
General provision for future losses; 1% of unclassified leases/loans

Total capital

Required minimum capital
Excess of total capital over required minimum capital

 690,191,659 
 250,000,000 

 440,191,659 

 690,191,659 
 49,783,712 

 739,975,371 

 250,000,000 
 489,975,371 

 62,500,000 

 504,936,259 
 250,000,000 

 254,936,259 

 504,936,259 
 44,514,653 

 549,450,912 

 250,000,000 
 299,450,912 

-

During the year 2007, the Company successfully completed Initial Public Offering (IPO) of shares for 500,000 
number of shares with an offer price of Tk. 225 per share (face value Tk.100 plus premium of Tk.125). This amount of 
Tk. 62,500,000 represents the share premium for 500,000 shares @ Tk.125 per share received against IPO and 
available for utilization as per relevant rules and regulations.

4 Share premium
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The Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 26, 2008 recommended  dividend @ 30% i.e. Tk. 30 against 
per share of Tk. 100 each as dividend for the year 2007 to be distributed in the form of cash @ 20% i.e. Tk. 20 and 
bonus share @ 10% i.e. Tk. 10 per share of Tk. 100 each equals to Tk. 46 million and Tk. 23 million respectively (1 
bonus share against every 10 shares hold). 

6 Statutory reserve

Balance as  at 1st January 
Add : transferred from appropriations of profit (note- 47)

Balance as at December 31

 120,336,000 
 23,600,000 

 143,936,000 

 100,000,000 
 20,336,000 

 120,336,000 

The above reserve has been created @ 20% (rounded off to the nearest thousand) out of net profit for the year 2007 of 
the company as per statutory requirement of Financial Institutions Regulation and continued to be built up at this rate, 
till the reserve equates the paid up capital of the company unless otherwise advised.

7 General reserve
Balance as  at 1st January 

Add : transferred from appropriations of profit (note- 47)
Less : transferred to retained earnings

Balance as at December 31

 36,338,676 
 -   

 36,338,676 
 -   

 -   
 36,338,676 

 -   
 36,338,676 

The entire amount of general reserve created earlier has been transferred to retained earnings as per decision of 
the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 26, 2008.

8 Retained earnings 

Balance as at 1st January
Add: profit after tax for the year

Available for appropriation
Less: appropriations (note- 47)

Add: transferred from general reserve
Balance as at December 31

 123,261,583 
 117,755,400 

 241,016,983 
 92,600,000 
 36,338,676 

 184,755,659 

 123,261,583 
 101,674,676 

 224,936,259 
 101,674,676 

 -   
 123,261,583 

9 Long-term loans-net of current maturity
The company avail a large amount of it's required fund from various banks and financial institutions. The loans are 
secured by first fixed and floating charges on all present and future movable and immovable properties of the 
company registered with RJSC ranking pari-passu among the lenders. Loans repayable within one year have been 
placed under current liabilities. Detail of the loans are as under:

Counter veiling loan (note- 9.1)
Credit facility term loan (note- 9.2)

Less : current maturity (note- 9.3)

 31,568,075 
 2,046,773,733 

 2,078,341,808 
 801,977,060 

 1,276,364,748  

 48,853,835 
 2,015,196,026 

 2,064,049,861 
 754,321,092 

 1,309,728,770 

5 Proposed dividend
Cash 

Bonus share
 46,000,000 
 23,000,000 

 69,000,000 

 45,000,000 
     -   

 45,000,000 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



9.2 Credit facility term loan 
Bank Alfalah Ltd.

Bank Asia Ltd.
BASIC Bank Ltd.
BRAC Bank Ltd.

The City Bank Ltd.
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Dhaka Bank Ltd.
Exim Bank Ltd.

Jamuna Bank Ltd.
Mercentile Bank Ltd.

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
National Bank Ltd.

National Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd.
Prime Bank Ltd.
Pubali Bank Ltd.

Shahajalal Islami Bank Ltd.
Social Investment Bank Ltd.

Sonali Bank
Southeast Bank Ltd.
Standard Bank Ltd.

Trust Bank Ltd.
United Commercial Bank Ltd.

Uttara Bank Ltd.

 30,508,809 
 42,590,134 

 115,567,953 
 89,976,535 

 116,940,418 
 91,666,667 
 63,097,181 
 14,092,279 
 59,042,229 
 69,772,968 
 77,311,702 
 74,073,418 
 16,678,053 

 254,113,287 
 237,561,491 

 60,320,824 
 20,205,227 
 27,272,727 
 32,978,521 
 55,323,519 

 141,499,266 
 84,890,681 

 271,289,846 
 2,046,773,733 

 45,483,119 
 23,563,444 
 87,040,787 
 50,369,444 

 200,871,863 
              -   
 99,547,167 
 28,851,322 
 91,635,897 

 132,352,248 
 110,631,349 

 89,793,282 
            -   

 184,471,925 
 194,951,543 

 94,615,668 
 57,398,046 
 63,636,363 
 82,571,774 
 71,158,289 
 53,002,348 

 122,346,088 
 130,904,060 

 2,015,196,026 

The countervailing loans availed from BRAC Bank Limited and Industrial and Infrastructure Development Finance Co. 
Limited have been fully paid during the year.

9.1 Counter veiling loan

Bank Asia Limited
BRAC Bank Limited

Dhaka Bank Limited
Fareast Finance & Investment Limited

Industrial & Infrastructure Development Finance Co. Ltd.

28,378,037 
            -   

 2,234,775 
 955,263 

          -   
 31,568,075 

 42,730,140 
 449,898 

 3,848,411 
 1,417,884 

 407,502 
 48,853,835 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)

The outstanding amount of credit facility term loan as on December 31 are repayable as per following schedule:

Within one year
Above one year to two years

Above two years to three years
Above three years to four years

Above four years to five years

 787,681,423 
 605,344,223 
 366,377,440 
 214,648,927 

 72,721,720 
 2,046,773,733 

 736,149,310 
 614,937,868 
 372,183,880 
 218,050,736 

 73,874,232 
 2,015,196,026 
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9.3 Current maturity of long term loans
Counter veiling loan

Credit facility term loan
 14,295,637 

 787,681,423 
 801,977,060 

 18,171,782 
 736,149,310 

 754,321,092 

The above fund has been received from Bangladesh Bank under refinancing arrangement for financing of Small and 
Medium Enterprises (SME) with a repayment period of 3 to 5 years as per following schedule:

Repayable in

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

Total

Medium-term finance ( 3 years)
Amount (Taka)

12,933,600 
9,433,600 
6,450,000 

-
-

28,817,200

Long-term finance ( 5 years)
Amount (Taka)

3,600,375 
5,190,750 
5,190,750 
5,190,750 
1,850,375 

21,023,000 

 Total 

16,533,975 
 14,624,350 
 11,640,750 

 5,190,750 
 1,850,375 

 49,840,200 

 

The interest rate of the fund is at bank rate. 

11 Fund from RPGCL -  45,129,482 

The above fund has been received from Rupantarita Prakritik Gas Company Limited (RPGCL) under Dhaka Clean 
Fuel Project for financing of environment friendly projects like CNG Filling Station, CNG driven buses etc. The 
interest (at bank rate plus 0.5%) of the fund are paid quarterly and the principal repayment will be started from 
2009 for a period of 10 years ending in 2017.

12 Term deposits-net of current maturity
This represents interest bearing deposits received from institutions and individuals for a period of minimum six 
months to maximum six years. Based on previous experience and the relationship with the depositors, the 
management of the company is of the opinion that majority portion of the deposits will be renewed and therefore 
substantial amount of such deposits are considered as non-current liability. The outstanding amount of deposits as 
on December 31 are shown under following two categories.

Public
Other than public

Less: current maturity (note- 12.1)

 711,294,255 
 2,542,500,000 

 3,253,794,255 
 1,327,567,314 

 1,926,226,941 

 413,774,522 
 2,230,000,000 

 2,643,774,522 
 1,106,349,608 

 1,537,424,914 

The maximum period of the loans are 5 years and the interest rates ranging from 10% to 14%

10 Fund from Bangladesh Bank
Fund for SME financing

Less: current maturity 
 49,840,200 
 16,533,975 

 33,306,225 

 14,459,000 
 1,491,800 

 12,967,200 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



Non-interest bearing security deposits
Lease finance
Term finance

Work order finance
Interest bearing security deposits 

Less: current maturity (note- 13.1)

 178,463,139 
 125,061,397 

 50,850,615 
 2,551,127 
 6,098,076 

 184,561,215 
 24,472,809 

 160,088,406

 153,700,754 
 124,997,619 

 28,203,135 
 500,000 

 10,315,824 
 164,016,578 

 15,015,738 
 149,000,840 

The rate of interest on interest bearing security deposits ranging from 10% to 10.5%

13.1 Current maturity of security deposits

Lease finance
Term finance

Work order finance

 15,461,947 
 6,821,562 
 2,189,300

 24,472,809 

 11,919,082 
 2,596,656 

 500,000 
 15,015,738 

14 Deferred liability-employees' gratuity
Balance as  at 1st January 

Add: provision made during the year
Less: payment made during the year

Balance as at December 31

 704,345 
 784,194 

 30,000 
 1,458,539 

 1,697,099 
 88,596 

 1,081,350 
 704,345 

15 Interest suspense account
Lease income earned and income from direct finance, overdue for three months (or equivalent, i.e. 90 days) or more 
for lease/direct finance up to 5 years tenure and for six months (or equivalent, i.e. 180 days) or more for lease/direct 
finance of more than 5 years tenure is not recognised as revenue and credited to interest suspense account. 
Suspended interests are recognized as revenue and credited in profit and loss account on realisation basis. Product 
wise amount of suspended interest as on December 31are given below:

Lease finance
Direct finance

 55,732,875 
 36,028,759 

 91,761,634 

 37,627,416 
 20,832,581 

 58,459,997 

12.1 Current maturity of term deposits
Public

Other than public
 235,067,314 

 1,092,500,000 
 1,327,567,314 

 256,349,608 
 850,000,000 

 1,106,349,608 

The interest rate of the deposits varies from 10.25%  to 13.5%

13 Security deposits-net of current maturity
This represents  deposits received against lease and direct finance on signing of the agreement which are subject 
to repayment/adjustment on expiry of the agreement. The company receives security deposits under two 
categories of non-interest bearing and interest bearing security deposit. Details are shown below:  

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)
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Balance as at 1st January
Provision made/(written back) during the year 

Balance as at December 31

18 Property, plant and equipment for own use
(at cost less accumulated depreciation)

Cost:
Balance as at 1st January

Add: addition during the year
Less: disposal during the year

Balance as at December 31
Depreciation:

Balance as at 1st January
Add: charged during the year

Charged in profit and loss account
Charged in PD unit as advance

Less: adjustment during the year
Balance as at December 31

Net book value (annexure-1)

 55,000,000 
 5,000,000 

 60,000,000 

 

21,809,392 
 1,067,248 
 1,335,000 

 21,541,640 

 14,568,680 
 2,785,112 
 2,785,112 

              - 
 1,248,748 

 16,105,044 

 5,436,596 

 70,000,000 
 (15,000,000)
 55,000,000

 
 

17,426,877 
 5,074,326 

 691,811 
 21,809,392 

 11,794,910 
 3,245,753 
 3,138,879 

 106,874 
 471,983 

 14,568,680 

 7,240,712 

19 Net investment in leases-net of current maturity
Net investment in leases represents gross lease rental receivables from the lessee minus unearned lease income 
against investment in leases. Investment in leases represents assets leased to the lessees and accounted for under 
finance method. The company is the legal owner of the leased assets. Unearned lease income is the excess of gross 
lease rental receivables over the cost of the leased assets. Detail of investment in leases are given below:

Gross investment in leases
Less: unearned lease income

Less: current maturity (note-19.1)

 4,461,523,578 
 1,239,935,916 

 3,221,587,662 
 813,650,030 

 2,407,937,632 

 4,346,033,422 
 1,047,999,111 

 3,298,034,311 
 930,468,620 

 2,367,565,691 

17 Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability is recorded under liability method as required by BAS- 12; "Income Tax" in order to allocate the 
charge of tax to each year relating to that year, taking into account the taxable temporary differences and 
deductible temporary differences arising out of carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax base. The 
change in deferred tax liability is shown below:

Training fund represents administration cost received from Royal Danish Embassy for operation of private sector 
development project funded by DANIDA. As per agreement, such cost incurred by ILFSL & received from DANIDA 
can only be spent for the purpose of employees' training.

 181,271  256,798 16 Training fund 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



19.1 Current maturity of net investment in leases
Gross investment in leases

Less: unearned lease income
 1,292,034,844 

 478,384,814 
 813,650,030 

 1,376,382,236 
 445,913,616 

 930,468,620 

Lease term of the above leases vary from 24 months to 84 months. The principal portion of rental receivable within 
next 12 months i.e. up to December 31, 2008 has been classified as current assets.

The amount of gross investment in leases as of December 31 are realizable as per following schedule:

Up to one year
Above one year to three years

Above three years to five years
Above five years

 1,292,034,844 
 2,031,261,135 

 880,460,139 
 257,767,460 

 4,461,523,578 

 1,376,382,236 
 2,113,517,059 

 831,951,187 
 24,182,940 

 4,346,033,422 

20 Advance against leases
This represents disbursement for procurement of leased assets at balance sheet date. On execution of leases, advances 
will be transferred to investment in leases. The outstanding amount of advance against leases as of December 31 are 
shown under following two categories.

Imported equipment
Local equipment

 259,156,752 
 285,931,385 

 545,088,137 

 299,702,580 
 169,179,756 

 468,882,336 

Advance against leases carry interest as per terms of the agreement until the advances are executed. The interest 
earned during the year on advance against leases are shown in note- 35.

21 Direct finance-net of current maturity 
This represents amounts advanced to loanee with a specific repayment schedule for an agreed period of 6 months 
to 84 months. Direct finance realizable within next 12 months i.e. up to December 31, 2008 are classified as current 
assets.

Term finance 
Work order finance

Countervailing finance

Less: current maturity (note- 21.1)

 2,402,502,075 
 41,640,237 

 646,106 
 2,444,788,418 

 983,090,277 
 1,461,698,141 

 1,804,653,229 
 2,440,549 
 1,134,900 

 1,808,228,678 
 956,731,201 

 851,497,477 

21.1 Current maturity of direct finance

Term finance 
Work order finance

Counter veiling finance

 940,901,630 
 41,640,237 

 548,410 
 983,090,277 

 953,801,858 
 2,440,549 

 488,794 
 956,731,201 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)
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22 Investments-net of current maturity
Government treasury bonds (note-22.1)

Government treasury bills (note-22.2)
Asset backed zero coupon bonds (note- 22.3)

Investment in shares (note- 22.4 )

Less: current maturity 

 529,866,549 
 618,915,606 

 15,238,003 
                   -   
 1,164,020,158 

 1,162,319,142 
 1,701,016 

 356,455,480 
                -   

 35,257,474 
 17,555,257 

 409,268,211 
 393,364,018 
 15,904,193 

22.1 Government treasury bonds 
Investment in government treasury bonds represents present value of the bonds of different tenure from 5 to 20 
years purchased from Bangladesh Bank through various auctions under primary dealership license with the face 
value of Taka 532,200,000. These bonds carry  different rate of interest receivable on a six monthly coupon basis. All 
the bonds are considered as stock in trade. Detail of investment in Government treasury bonds as of December 31 
are given below:

Purchase price
Accrued discount

Less: current maturity

 526,321,439 
 3,545,110 

 529,866,549 
 529,866,549 

 -   

 354,106,000 
 2,349,480 

 356,455,480 
 356,455,480 

-

22.2 Government treasury bills
Investment in government treasury bills represents present value of the bills purchased from Bangladesh Bank 
through various auctions under primary dealership license with the face value of Taka 636,800,000 The tenure of 
these bills are from 28 to 364 days. Detail of investment in Government treasury bills as of December 31 are given 
below:

Purchase price
Accrued discount

Less: current maturity

 612,259,095 
 6,656,511 

 618,915,606 
 618,915,606 

                         -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

22.3 Asset backed zero coupon bonds
Balance as at December 31

Less: current maturity 
 15,238,003 

 13,536,987 
 1,701,016 

 35,257,474 
 19,353,281 

 15,904,193 

The above amount represents investment in asset backed zero coupon bonds issued by Industrial Promotion & 
Development Co. of Bangladesh Limited and United Leasing Co. Limited with a tenure of  60 months with periodic 
redemption option. The bonds carry interest ranging from 7.61% to 8.27%, but due to a lower rate of tax (@ 10%) 
on income from such bonds; the effective rate of return on this investment would be around 13.5%.

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



23 Provision for future losses
Provision for classified and unclassified leases, direct finance and investments in shares have been made on the 
basis of analysis of portfolio made by the management of the company as per FID Circular No. 08 of 2002 and 
amended there on issued by Financial Institutions Department of Bangladesh Bank. An amount of Tk. 75,000,000 
has been provided during the year as provision for possible future losses which is considered to be adequate as per 
estimation of the management . Product wise break up of the provisions are given below:

Lease finance
Direct finance

Investment in shares

24 Factoring finance

 156,035,000 
 88,965,000 

 -   
 245,000,000 

 -   

 123,748,000 
 45,609,000 

 643,000 
 170,000,000 

 2,500,000 

This amount represents receivable from Insight Limited transferred to accounts receivables being current maturity.

25 Accounts receivables 

Lease rental receivables
Interest receivables on advance against leases

Other receivables from lessee
Receivables - term finance

Other receivables from loanee
Receivables - work order finance

Other receivables - work order finance
Receivables - factoring finance

Interest receivables - FDR
Coupon receivable - treasury bonds

Underwriting commission receivables - bills/bonds
Interest receivables - asset backed zero coupon bonds

Others

 321,193,361 
 141,917,169 

 14,193,824 
 277,971,512 

 12,192,580 
 7,621,109 
 2,197,476 
 2,965,670 
 1,266,666 
 6,212,281 
 2,270,000 

 716,947 
 46,446 

 790,765,041 

 262,297,642 
 99,807,643 
 17,895,509 

 194,252,920 
 1,797,180 
 2,209,385 

                    -   
 177,500 

 1,053,151 
 4,460,850 

                    -   
 2,295,202 

 601,800 
 586,848,782 

The receivables against the core products of the company are sufficiently covered by provision as per provisioning 
guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank. The other receivables are considered as good by the management of the 
company.

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)

22.4 Investment in shares  -  17,555,257 

The entire portfolio of investment in shares has been liquidated before end of December 31, 2007. 
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26 Advances, deposits & prepayments 

Advance for PD unit (note-26.1)
Advance for software development (note- 26.2)

Advance for sundry expenses and employees loan (note- 26.3)
Deposit for telephone/CDBL

Advance for investment in shares
Advance for IPO (note- 26.4)

Advance for new branch opening - Chittagong (note- 26.5)
Advance for subsidiary - IL Securities (note- 26.6)

Advance tax payment/deducted at source (note- 26.7)

             -   
 3,132,454 
 7,773,303 

 339,500 
             -   
             -   

 4,738,021 
 55,790,784 
 35,169,960 

 106,944,022 

 3,938,449 
 2,351,543 
 1,339,117 

 39,500 
 8,692,448 
 1,368,692 

               -   
               -   

 23,977,304 
 41,707,053 

26.1 This amount was incurred in connection with development of secondary market for government bonds as a 
primary dealer under a Management Service Agreement (MSA) with First Capital Limited,  Sri Lanka. The entire 
amount is charged as expense as the contract has expired and not required to be renewed for further period.

26.2 This represents advance for development of leasing software currently under development stage by software 
vendor ICE Technologies and Services Ltd. On completion and implementation of the software the total cost will be 
capitalized and amortized with approval of the Board as per applicable standards.

26.3  This represents advance made to the employees of company as per Company's Service Rules.

26.4 The amount paid earlier as advance against various expense for IPO is charged as expense during the year.

26.5 This represents amount paid for various purposes in connection with opening of Chittagong branch. The total 
payment will be charged/capitalized when the branch comes under operation.

26.6 This represents amount paid for various purposes in connection with opening of a Subsidiary Company. The total 
payment will be accounted for as per decision of the appropriate authority when the subsidiary comes into 
operation.

26.7 This represents tax payment of Tk. 900,000 as required for filling of appeal with the tribunal and Tk. 34,269,960 as 
tax deducted at source from interest on FDR with banks, interest bearing short-term deposit accounts, treasury 
bonds coupon income and dividend income from investment in shares. The amounts will be adjusted against 
future corporate income tax liability.

27 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash in hand

FDR with banks
Interest bearing short-term deposit account  

Non-interest bearing current account

 136,669 
 360,000,000 

 51,890,349 
 36,607,723 

 448,634,741 

 74,992 
 40,000,000 
 17,563,304 
 18,142,035 

 75,780,331 

Cash in hand represents the amount held for meeting petty cash expenses. As per Bangladesh Bank guidelines, 
NBFI cannot make any cash transaction other than petty cash.

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)

Notes to the financial statements - continued



28 Advance lease rental & other payables 
 Receipt against leases 

 Receipt against term finance 
 Receipt against work order finance 

 Advance lease rental 
 Other payables to lessee/loanee 

 15,435,384 
 12,400,162 

 492,172 
              -   

 7,711,986 
 36,039,703 

 15,608,496 
 2,655,431 

 487,172 
 19,317,888 

 3,742,653 
 41,811,639 

Receipts against leases, term and work order finance represent monies received on a lump sum basis whether due 
or not and rental receipts against syndication finance which are subsequently adjustable/refundable on due basis.

Advance lease rental represents rental receipts from lessee in respect of  lease agreement that has not yet been 
executed.

Government treasury bonds
Government treasury bills

 530,000,000 
 615,000,000 

 1,145,000,000 

 300,000,000 
          -   

 300,000,000 

The above amount represents liability for REPO with various banks against investment in government treasury 
bonds and bills. The corresponding asset has been shown under note- 22.1 and 22.2

30 Current tax provision
Balance as  at 1st January 

Add : provision made during the year
Balance as at December 31

 5,000,000 
 5,000,000 

 10,000,000 

                -   
 5,000,000 

 5,000,000 

Current tax provision is made as per estimated income tax liability for the year.

31 Bank overdrafts  82,624,541  9,120,133 

This represents secured overdrafts with BRAC Bank Limited, One Bank Limited, Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited and 
United Commercial Bank Limited.

32 Short-term loans 
Treasury lines 

Call loan (note-32.1) 
 300,000,000 
 280,000,000 

 580,000,000 

 100,000,000 
 440,000,000 

 540,000,000 

32.1 Call loan represents overnight borrowing from banks. As per Bangladesh Bank guideline the maximum limit of call 
loan that could have been taken by the company is 15% of net assets which is equivalent to Tk. 642.71 million.

Non-interest bearing current account includes Tk. 17,331,676 held with Bangladesh Bank CD account maintained 
to meet the Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR). As per Bangladesh Bank guideline, every NBFI requires to maintain 
cash reserve with Bangladesh Bank @ 2.5% on all interest bearing deposit other than deposits from bank and 
financial institutions. Bangladesh Bank regulations also require Statutory Liquidity Reserve (SLR) @ 5% to be 
maintained by NBFIs on it's total liabilities other than loans from bank. The company usually maintains the reserve 
in the form of fixed deposit with banks which is for very short term and not an investment in nature. Therefore, FDR 
with banks for Tk.  360,000,000 is shown as cash and cash equivalent.

29 REPO against Government treasury bonds and bills

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)
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33 Payables & accrued expenses 
Interest on call loan 

Interest on long-term loans
Interest on fund from Bangladesh Bank

Interest on fund from RPGCL
Interest on term deposits- public

Interest on term deposits- other than public
Interest on treasury lines

Liability for expenses
Advance for Private Sector Development (PSD) program (note-33.1)

Interest payable- REPO of government treasury bills
Interest payable- REPO of government treasury bonds

VAT payable

 1,109,556 
 3,070,714 
 1,344,528 

 275,000 
 31,440,729 

 108,197,027 
 13,056,570 

 296,929 
 10,450,147 

 867,170 
 600,137 

 41,100 
 170,749,608 

 2,211,146 
 3,176,215 

 122,500 
           -   

 22,628,725 
 87,528,526 

 3,155,008 
 49,250 

 7,989,712 
             -   
             -   

 40,200 
 126,901,281 

33.1  This represents rental received on monthly basis from the clients financed under PSD program funded by DANIDA 
which is refundable to the Royal Danish Embassy on quarterly basis.

34 Unpaid refund warrant

The amount represents refund warrant issued to the unsuccessful investors not presented to the bank within 
December 31, 2007. It is anticipated that it will take some more time to liquidate this liability fully.

35 Income from leases
Interest on advance against leases

Lease income earned
Income suspended

 76,916,683 
 511,271,959 
 (19,464,374)

 568,724,268 

 70,696,844 
 496,395,452 
 (18,563,731)

 548,528,565 

Lease income earned represents the interest portion of lease rentals accrued during the year. Income suspended 
represents the interest portion in overdue rental which is not recognized as income as per Bangladesh Bank 
Guidelines.

36 Income from direct finance 
Interest on term finance 

Interest on work order finance 
Income suspended 

37 Income from PD & treasury operations
Capital gain & discount income from government treasury bonds

Capital gain & discount income from government treasury bills
Coupon income - government treasury bonds

Underwriting commission - government treasury bonds & bills

 348,344,623 
 6,553,481 

 (14,966,179)
 339,931,925 

 6,165,310 
 16,947,290 
 26,934,069 

 2,270,000 
 52,316,669 

 255,040,901 
 1,590,382 

 (14,770,833)
 241,860,450 

 1,294,530 
                     -   

 27,000,000 
                     -   

 28,294,530 

 2,590,858                            -   

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



38 Income from investment in shares

Dividend income
Capital gain

 2,934,853 
 59,413,365 

 62,348,218 

 1,566,667 
 (317,607)

 1,249,060 

39 Other operational income
Processing fees

Leases
Term finance

Work order finance
Income from factoring finance

Income from asset backed zero coupon bonds (note- 39.1)

Penal interest realized
Gain on sale of leased assets

Gain on sale of fixed assets
Supplementary rental, interest on margin, etc.

 1,335,100 
 467,200 
 787,150 

 80,750 
 226,250 
 604,513 

 5,798,623 
 2,076,499 

 476,073 
 1,470,123 

 11,987,181 

 1,078,750 
 658,000 
 386,750 

 34,000 
 456,250 

 5,741,212 
 10,654,097 

 3,669,644 
 85,993 

 618,139 
 22,304,085 

39.1 This represents difference between the subscription price and redemption value of the asset backed zero coupon 
bonds accrued during the year.

40 Financial expenses
Interest on short-term loans

Interest on counter veiling loans 
Interest on credit facility term loans

Interest on term deposits
Public

Other than public
Interest on overdraft & others

Less: financial income (note- 40.1)

 68,938,825 
 4,312,767 

 277,582,700 
 418,693,276 

 63,145,471 
 355,547,804 

 16,025,868 
 785,553,435 

 27,816,739 
 757,736,695 

 75,510,369 
 6,535,539 

 307,823,497 
 259,005,310 

 40,848,564 
 218,156,746 

 23,499,176 
 672,373,891 

 9,918,422 
 662,455,469 

40.1 Financial income represents interest income from FDR/deposits with banks and financial institutions as per under 
noted break-up

Interest from FDR
Interest from STD accounts

Interest from call loan extended and others

 27,063,799 
 631,381 
 121,559 

 27,816,739 

 8,682,068 
 431,098 
 805,256 

 9,918,422 

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)
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41 General and administrative expenses
Communication cost

Telephone
Vehicle fuel cost

Vehicle maintenance cost
Vehicle other cost

Audit fees
C I B service charges

Fees and subscription
Garage rent

House expenses
Legal and professional charges

Office and other rent
Realization Fees

Gratuity (note- 41.2)
Group insurance premium

Salary and allowances (note- 41.1 & 41.4)
ABSB - Issuing Expense

Advertisement and publicity (note - 41.5)
Bank charges

Books and periodicals
Business promotion expenses

Directors' board meeting fee (note- 41.3)
Donation

E. C. members' meeting fee
Entertainment and public relation

Securities' account charge
Office maintenance

Printing and stationery
Repair & maintenance

Training expenses
Traveling and conveyance

Utilities

 207,720 
 580,844 
 704,935 
 532,271 
 216,705 
 118,479 

 35,700 
 577,801 

               -   
 660,000 
 950,862 

 2,248,667 
 545,904 
 784,194 
 152,155 

 18,640,035 
 160,220 

 2,781,262 
 187,229 

 26,318 
 902,730 
 145,886 

 85,000 
 207,064 
 217,868 
 150,556 
 617,698 

 1,208,558 
 352,628 

 75,860 
 619,758 
 560,703 

 35,255,610 

 219,142 
 396,073 
 547,817 
 296,573 
 256,684 
 101,125 

 40,400 
 205,988 

 26,000 
 660,000 
 560,948 

 2,142,000 
 875,684 

 88,596 
 136,844 

 14,713,918 
              -   

 419,964 
 172,888 

 13,471 
 345,850 
 182,354 

              -   
 159,561 
 222,096 

              -   
 622,294 

 1,012,881 
 60,390 
 77,000 

 353,024 
 471,567 

 25,381,132 

41.1 Management emoluments

Remuneration
Benefits

 1,812,000 
 660,000 

 2,472,000 

 2,107,000 
 842,354 

 2,949,354 

Management emoluments (under salary and allowances) include Tk. 1,812,000 paid to the managing director of 
the company as remuneration.

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)



41.2  A sum of Tk. 784,194 has been provided for gratuity for the year 2007.

41.3 Directors board meeting fee for attending each board meeting during the year was Tk. 4,000 per director. No 
director has been paid any remuneration for any special service rendered.

41.4 Salary and allowances include annual contribution of Tk. 929,930 to provident fund. 

41.5 Advertisement expense includes Tk. 2,203,024 incurred for mobilization of deposits for newspaper advertisement, 
flyer and other promotional materials.

42 Expense for PD & treasury operations

Expense for treasury bills
Expense for treasury bonds

 15,736,923 
 33,626,515 

 49,363,438 

          
                 -   

 29,086,534 
 29,086,534 

This represents interest accrued for the year on REPO of government treasury bonds & bills.

43 Provision for future losses
Lease finance
Term finance

Investment in shares

 32,287,000 
 43,356,000 

 (643,000)
 75,000,000 

 17,348,000 
 12,509,000 

 643,000 
 30,500,000 

44 Non-operational profit
Income from IPO

Less: expense for IPO
 19,107,256 

 6,519,261 
 12,587,995 

          -   
          -   
          -   

This represents net interest income from STD account with Jamuna Bank Limited designated for IPO proceeds after 
deducting expenses incurred for issuing 500,000 nos. of shares during the year under IPO.

45 Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic earning per share:

Earning attributable to ordinary shareholders (profit after tax)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

 117,755,400 
 1,987,500 

 59.25 

 101,674,676 
 1,800,000 

 56.49 

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there was no convertible securities for 
dilution during the year.

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)

70 Annual Report 07

Notes to the financial statements - continued



Notes to the financial statements - continued

46 Related party disclosure 

Name of related party

JAROMS
 Industries Limited

Related party 
relationship

Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad, 
Chairman of JAROMS 
Industries Limited holds 
3.48% of share capital of 
the company.

Transaction

Amount

 89,306,991 

Nature

Receivables 
against lease and 
term finance

Security 
arrangement

Registered mortgage 
on land & factory 
bui lding; Personal  
Guarantee of directors.

47 Event after balance sheet date
Subsequent to the balance sheet date the Board of Directors recommended dividend @ 30% i.e. Tk. 30 against per 
share of Tk. 100 each for the year 2007 to be distributed in the form of cash @ 20% and bonus share @ 10% equals 
to Tk. 46 million and Tk. 23 million respectively (1bonus share against every 10 shares hold) in their meeting held 
on February 26, 2008 subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting. 

Detail of the appropriations of available profit as recommended by the board are given below:

Transfer to statutory reserve
Transfer to general reserve

Dividend
Cash

Bonus share

 23,600,000 
         -   

 69,000,000 
 46,000,000 
 23,000,000 

 92,600,000 

 20,336,000 
 36,338,676 

 45,000,000 
 45,000,000 

                  -   
 101,674,676 

In addition to the above the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 26, 2008 decided to transfer the 
entire amount of general reserve Tk. 36,338,676 created earlier to retained earnings. 

There is no event which may require adjustment or disclosure other than those disclosed.

48 Commitments/contingencies
In the normal course of business, the company makes various commitments and gives guarantees. The summary of 
commitments/guarrantees of the company as on December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Letter of credit opened for import of machinery/equipments 
Letter of guarantee issued in favour of clients

Counter guarantee against bank guarantee issued in favour of clients

Out of the above amounts Tk. 7,541,380 has been subsequently released.

 44,170,909 
 25,158,870 
 14,151,596 

 83,481,375 

49 Number of employees engaged for the whole year and drawing remuneration of Tk. 36,000 and above per annum 
was 40.

50 Approval of the financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the company on 26 February 
2008.

Mustafizur Rahman
Managing Director

Gavin J. Walker
Director

Nehal Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary

  2007 2006
(Figures in BDT)
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Notes to the financial statements - continued



Legal Status
Date of Incorporation
Date of Enlistment with Dhaka 
Stock Exchange and Chittagong 
Stock Exchange
Registered Office

Branch Office

Accounting Year End
No. of Employees
Auditor

Legal Adviser

Board of Directors

Executive Committee

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Management Committee

Managing Director
Company Secretary

: Public Limited Company
: January 15, 1996
: September 16, 2007

: Printers Building (14th floor), 
5, Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh

: Ayub Trade Centre (1st floor), 1269/B Agrabad C/A, 
Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh.

: December 31
: 40
: Rahman Mostafa Alam and Co.

Chartered Accountants
: Temple Court Chambers

Hasan and Associates
: Chairman

 
Mr. Theo Renard
Mr. Sajidur Rahman Khan
Mr. Mizanur Rahman
Mr. Faiz Ahmad
Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad
Mr. C.K. Hyder, Independent Director
Mr. Mustafizur Rahman, Managing Director

: Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad, Chairman
Mr. Mizanur Rahman, Member
Mr. Sajidur Rahman Khan, Member
Mr. A.M. Hamim Rahmatullah, Member
Mr. Mustafizur Rahman, Member 

: Mr. C.K. Hyder, Member
Mr. Faiz Ahmad, Member
Mr. Itrat Husain, Member
Mr. Nehal Ahmed, Company Secretary

: Mr. Gavin J. Walker, Chairman
Mr. Jamal Uddin Ahmad, Member
Mr. Mizanur Rahman, Member

: Mr. Mustafizur Rahman, Chairman 
Mr. Nehal Ahmed, Member
Mr. Md. Monirul Islam, Member
Ms. Shrabani Bhattacharjee, Member

: Mr. Mustafizur Rahman
: Mr. Nehal Ahmed FCA

Mr. Mahbub Jamil, (On leave)
Mr. Gavin J. Walker

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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B›Uvib¨vkbvj wjwRs GÛ wdb¨vwÝqvj mvwf©‡mm wjwg‡UW
cÖw· dig

Avwg/Avgiv .............................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv ...................................................................................................................................................

B›Uvib¨vkbvj wjwRs GÛ wdb¨vwÝqvj mvwf©‡mm wjwg‡UW Gi m`m¨ wn‡m‡e .....................................................................

Rbve/†eMg .............................................................................................................................................

wVKvbv ...................................................................................................................................................

Avgiv/Avgv‡`i cÖwZwbwa wn‡m‡e AvMvgx 24 GwcÖj 2008 AbywôZe¨ †Kv¤cvbxi 12Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Ges Gi gyjZex †NvwlZ 

mfvq Avgvi/Avgv‡`i c‡¶ Dcw¯’Z _vKvi Ges †fvU cÖ`vb Kivi Rb¨ wbhy³ Kijvg|

¯^v¶¨ wn‡m‡e A`¨ ................................................... ..... GwcÖj 2008 Zvwi‡L Avwg/Avgiv GB ̀ wj‡j mÁv‡b ̄ ^v¶i Kijvg

cÖwZwbwai ̄ ^v¶i  .......................................................................................................................................

m`‡m¨i ̄ ^v¶i ..........................................................................................................................................

m`‡m¨i dwjI/weI AvBwW 

Dcw¯’wZ cÎ

Rbve/†eMg ............................................................................................................................................. 

m`‡m¨i dwjI/weI AvBwW 

Avwg GZØviv 24 GwcÖj 2008 e„n¯cwZevi, b¨vkbvj ïwUs Kg‡c·, ¸jkvb-1 XvKvq AbywôZe¨ B›Uvib¨vkbvj wjwRs GÛ 

wdb¨vwÝqvj mvwf©‡mm wjwg‡UW-Gi 12Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avgvi Dcw¯’wZ wjwce× Kijvg|

    ...........................................

¯^v¶i

we.`ª. t mfvq †hvM`vbKvix m`m¨MY‡K Aby‡iva Kiv hv‡”Q †h, Zuviv †hb e¨w³MZfv‡e ev Zuv‡`i cÖwZwbwai gva¨‡g mfvK‡¶ cÖ‡e‡ki c~‡e© Dcw¯’wZ cÎLvbv 

Rgv †`b|  

8 UvKvi 

†iwfwbD 

÷¨v¤ú



Revenue 
Stamp 

of 
Tk. 8.00

International Leasing and Financial Services Limited

Proxy Form

I/We ................................................................................................................................................................

of ....................................................................................................................................................................

being a Member of International Leasing and Financial Services Limited, hereby appoint

Mr./Ms. ............................................................................................................................................................

of ....................................................................................................................................................................

thas my proxy in my absence to attend and vote for me and on my behalf at the 12  Annual General meeting of 

the Company to be held on April 24, 2008 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ........................................................................................................ Day of April 2008

Signature of Proxy ...........................................................................................................................................

Signature of Member .......................................................................................................................................

Register Folio no./BO ID of Member

Attendance Slip

Mr./Ms. ........................................................................................................................................................... 

Register Folio no./BO ID of Member
th I hereby record my presence at the 12 Annual General Meeting of International Leasing and Financial 

Services Limited on Thursday, April 24, 2008 at National Shooting Complex, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212.

     ..............................
Signature 

N. B. The Member attending the meeting is kindly requested to mention the registered name and Folio no./BO ID on this 
slip and present the same at the registration counter on the day of the meeting.





Head Office : 
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i

International Leasing and Financial Services Limited
thPrinters Building, 14  Floor, 5 Rajuk Avenue 

Dhaka -1000, Bangladesh.

stAyub Trade Centre, 1  floor 
1269/B, Sk. Mujib Road, Agrabad C/A 
Chittagong - 4100, Bangladesh.

Branch Office : 

Tel : 880-2-9559639 (Hunting) 
Fax : 880-2-9559640

E-mail : ilfsl@bangla.net 
Website : www.ilfsl.com
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